Friday, Barbara

From: Kirts, Christopher

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, October 22, 2007 11:31 AM

Subiject: Read: Air Permit No.: 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B-Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises,

Inc. - Fernandina Beach Mill

Your message

To: 'glangstaf@smurfit.com’; 'bcrews@smurfit.com’; Kirts, Christopher; 'dbuff@golder.com’; 'Little.James@epamail.epa.gov';
'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty

Subject: Air Permit No.: 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B- Smurf t-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - Fernandina Beach Mill

Sent: 10/16/2007 9:49 AM

was read on 10/22/2007 11:31 AM.
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Mitchell, Bruce

From: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Tuesday, October 16, 2007 9:49 AM

To: 'glangstaf@smurfit.com'; 'bcrews@smurfit.com’; Kirts, Christopher; 'dbuff@golder.com’;
'Little.James@epamail.epa.gov'; 'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty

Subject: . Air Permit No.: :0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-O62B-Smurﬁt-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. -

Fernandina Beach Mill
Attachments: 0890003-019-AC-PSD-FL-062BSmurfit-Stone Container-RevisionLetter.pdf-.pdf

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done'by selecting
"Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send". We must receive verification of
receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open and review the
document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded for free
at the following internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other correspondence in
lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the applicant and the
engineering community. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-
of-Record. ‘

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

10/16/2007



NOTICE OF FINAL AIR CONSTRUCTION PERMIT

In the Matter of an
Application for Permit by:

Mr. George Q. Langstaff DEP File No. 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B

V.P., Regional Mill Operations No. 7 Power Boiler, Fuel Usage, Oxygen Meter-and Testing Rev151ons
Smurfit-Stone ‘Container Entetprises, Inc. Nassau.County

Fernandina Beach Mill

North. 8" Street

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

Enclosed is the final air construction Permit No. 0890003-019AC, which revises pérmit conditions related to the No. 7
Power. Boiler requested for Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’s.existing mill located at North 8" Street, Nassau
County. This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.). The subject of the-air construction permit is
to remove the requirement to meet Performance Specification 3 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter. Pursuant to Rule 62-
297.310(7), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), the Department also established annual testing to demonstrate
compliance with emissions standards for nitrogen.oxides,. particulate matter, sulfur dioxide and opacity..

No-commenits were received on this revised draft permit package during the Public Notice period.

Any partyto this order. (permit) has. the right to: seek Judicial review of the permit pursuant to Section 120.68, F.S., by the
filing of a Notice of Appeal pursuant'to Rule 9.110, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, with the-Clérk of the Departmerit
in the Legal Office; and, by filing.a copy of the Notice of Appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the
appropriate District Court.of Appeal. The Notice of Appeal must be filed within 30, (thirty) days from the date this Notice is
filed with the Clerk of the Department.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Jececack Vit au
Trina L. Vielhauer

Chief

Bureau.of Air Regulation



Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Final Air Construction Permit
0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

‘The-undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifics that this NOTICE OF FINAL AIR CONSTRUCTION
PERMI[T élflﬁmf the finai permit) was sent electronically (with received receipt requested) before the close of business:on
|

to the persons listed.or as otherwise noted:
[

Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (glangsta@smurfit.com)

Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (bcrews@smurfit.com)

Mr. Chris Kirts, Northeast District (Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)

Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuffi@golder.com)

Mr, James Little; EPA Region 4 (Little.James@epa.gov)

Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Regioii 4 (Forney.Kathicen@epa.gov)

Clerk Stamp

FILING-AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant




Final Determination

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill
Facility ID No. 0890003
Nassau County

Air Construction Permit
Permit.Project No.. 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B

I Public Notice.

~ An Intent to Issue an Air Construction Permit to Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. for permit revisions. related
to the No. 7 Power Boiler at the existing Fernandima Beach Mill located at North :S‘h;St:cet, Fernandina Beach, Nassau .
County, was:clerked on September 11,.2007. The Public Notice of Intent to Issue an Air Construction Permit was published

in the NEWS .LEADER on September 19, 2007. The Draft Permit was available for public inspection at the Department’s
Bureau of Air Regulation in Tallahassee. Proof of publication of the Public Notice of Intent to Issue an Air Construction

Permit was received on September 26, 2007.
I1. Public Comments. |

There were no comments received during the Public Notice period.
I. Conclusion.

In conclusior, the perinitting authority heteby issues the final air construction permit No. 0890003-019-AC as fioticed.



Florida Department of N o
Environmental Protection el Kottkarmp
L Gonaernoy

Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road _ Michuel W. Sol

(¢

Tatlahassec, Florida 32399-2400 Sceretary

October 12, 2007
Sent by Electronic Mail - Received Receipt Requested

Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

North. 8" Street

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

Re: AirPermit No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-06ZB
Revises.Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062
No. 7 Power Boilér, Fernandina Beach Mill

Dear Mr. Langsaff:

This letter revision. modifies existing permit conditions to: clarify that the use of fuel oil is only for startup,
shutdown and malfunction in accordance with Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section, 60.11(d);
remove the requirement for the oxygen meter to meet Performarice Specification 3. in Appendix B.of 40 CFR 60;
and impose annual tests for particulate matter (PM), sulfur dioxide (SOy), nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon
monoxide (CO) and opacity. Additions are double-underlined and deletions are single strike-through. This letter
shall be attached to the original permits.

This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.). Any party to this order has the right to
scek judicial review of it under-Section 120.68, F.S., by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the: Florida
Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of
General Counsel, Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000, and by
filing.a copy of the natice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court
of Appeal. The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.

Executed. in Tallahassee, Florida.

Division of Air Resource Management

cc: Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (glangstaf@smurfit.com)
Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stoine Container Enterprises, Inc. ( berews@smurfit.com)
Mr. Chris Kirts, Northeast District (Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuff@golder.coin)
Mr. Jaines Little, EPA Region 4 (Little.James(@epa.gov)
Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4 (Forney.Kathleen(@epa.gov)

Wese Protedion, Toss Provess”™
nwndep.siate los



LETTER REVISION

REVISIONS TO AIR CONSTRUCTION PERMIT NO. AC45-35532
Specific Condition 4 of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

Before the construction permit expires, the proposed boiler will be sampled for pollutant emissions. Test
procedures will be EPA reference methods 1, 2,3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9 as described in 40 CFR 60, Appendix A or
other approve methods. Minimum sampling time-and volume will be as specified in new source performance
standard for'this type of source. Stack sampling facilities will iiclude the eyebolts 4nd angle descrlbed in the

-attached figures. During each federal fiscal year (September 1 — i :t testin
in accordance with the above methods to demonstrate compliance with the emxg_sgg_%_s_y)_;nggggﬁs___ﬁg;ggmcglate

' (PM; M&M&M@M&tﬁﬂo e

r,__e_nce methg 10 tests to determine ¢ar h@ mo ide (CO) emissions.and.verify. i

e Wthh mcludeg notlﬁcatlgngi ogeratlgg rates durmg tegmg, ;eco;
] S réeported in terms of the erissi ons

Specific Condition 7 of this permit is hereby revised as: follows:

Fuel oil may be used for start=ups, shut-c‘lown; and stand-b sa-cealis-net-avaiable malfunction, but the
gmlssmns durmg these ger;gd 7us tbe iz d t t exte't ract'cab € puj uant_ ___4!! g;gg 60. ! 1(d ) The oil

during gtagugi S _g_tgip_y_m an_d mlﬁmctlon
[Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and 0890003-019-AC; 40 CFR 60.11(d)]

REVISION TO PERMIT NO. PSD-FL-062

The second paragraph of Attachment II (Use of Flue Gas Oxygen Meter as BACT for Combustion
Controls) of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

practices, t .

I o;le_r_o cgnt;gugusly mgmtor and record the oxvgen cgntegt of theﬁhQ » :t_ _L __@s_mgmhjy} the
'permltteQ shall calibrate the flue gas oxygen meter. Results of emission determmat10ns shall be correlated tothe
flue gas oxygen content to define:

Fernandina Beach Mill 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler Revisions.to Original Permit Conditions
‘ Page 2 of 2



‘PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT . ]

TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT
Florida Department of
Erwironmental Protection
: (Department)
i Division of Air Resource

) Monogemeni Bureau of Air

Regulation
Dratt Air Permit Nos.
0890003 019-AC / PSD-FL-
0628
Smurfit-Stone. Container
‘Enterprises, InC., Fernandina
! Beach Mill
Nassau'County, Florida
Applicant: The applicant
for this project is Smurfit-Stone
Contdner Enterprisas, Inc.The

- applicaht’s authorized rep-

. an existing -Kraft:pulp and ,

resentative and mailing

address is: #Mr. George Q.

Langstaff, V.R, Regional Mill -
Operations, Smurfit-Stone

Container Enterprises, In¢.,

North 8th Street, Fernandina

Beach, Florida 32034,

Facility Location: The ap- -
plicant, Smurfit-Stone Contain-

or Enterprises, Inc.. operctes

paper mill located in Nassou
County at North 8th Strest,
" Fernandina Bsach, Florida,

Project: The No. 7 Power '

Boiler was originally permit-

struction review permit for thé

. Prevention of Significant

Deterioration (PSD) of Air
Quality and the Department

. issued the state air construc-

tion permit. The applicant
' requests revision of these per-
mits to remove a limit on the
fuel sulfur content for coal’
‘andto remove arecuirément
to meet - Performance™
Specification 3 in Appendlx
B of Tile 40, Code of Federal .
Regulations, Part 60 for the

: existing flue” gas oxygen
meter. Since these permit .

conditions originate from his-

torical EPA and Department

- construction permits, the

Bueau of Air Reguiationisthe |

permitting authority for con-
' sidering the requests.

After review of the histori- 4

cal permitting documents,

the Department finds" it

unnecessary torevise the per-

mit with regardto the fuel sul-

fur fimit. Although the draft '

permit included alimit onthe

" coatfuel sulfur. the final permit

wses théactud fuel sulfur fom
coal sampling and analysis

to calculate the predicted '

'« sulfur dioxide emissions to

ensure continual compli-

ance.The Department deter-

mined that the requirernent -

- to'meet Performance Specifi-

cation 3 for the existing flue

- gas oxygen meter could be !
removed because the meter |

is used to measure the oxy- *
.gen content-of the exhaust
from the boller flue for pro-
moting good combustion

" - practices. Pursuant fo Rule 62-

297.310(7), Rorida Administra-
_tive Code (FA.C), -the
Department will also clarify
the permit to establish annu-
al testing to demonstrate
compliance with emissions
standards for particuate mat-
ter, nitrogen oxides, sulfur diox-
ide and opacity.
Permitting Authority: Ap-
plications for alr construction
. permits are subject to review
in accordance with the pro-

visions of Chapter 403, Florida

-Statutes (FS.) and EA.C.

ted in 1981. At that tirge, EPA
Region 4 issued the precon= |

. 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS
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Cheplers 62.4 62-210,and 62

212. The proposed pro;ecf is

not exempt from air permn- .

_ fing requirements and an air

permit is required to perform |

the proposed work. The
Bureau of Air Reguictionis the
Permitting Authorify responsi-
ble for making apermit deter-
mination for this project. The
Permitting Authority’s physi-

L caladdressis: 111 South Mag-

-1

!
i

#5505, -Tallahasses, Florida

ber is 850/488-0114,
Project File: A complete

. project file is availabla for

- 32399-2400. The Permitting '
Authority’s telephone, num-

public inspection during the

normal business hours of 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday
through Friday (except legal

holidays), at addressindicat-

‘ed above for the Permitting
Authority. The complete proj-
oct file includes the Draft
Permit, the Technical Evalu-
ation and Prefiminary Deter-
mination, the” application,
and the information submit-
ted by the applicant, exclu-

' sive of cohfidential records

under Section 403.111,
Interested persons may con-

tact the Permitting Authority’s

project review engineer for.” |

additional information at the
address and phone number
listed above. In addition elec-
tronic. coples of these docu-
ments are available on the
following web site:
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air
/eproducts/ qods/default.asp.

Notice of intent to Issue
Air Permit: The Permitting
Authority gives notice of its
imtent to issue an air permit
to the applicant for the proj-

ect described above. The -

applicant has provided rea-
sonable assurance that oper-

ation of proposed equipment

will not adversely impact air
quality and that the project
will comply with all appropri-
ate provisions of Chapters 62-
4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-
296, and 62-297, FA.C. The
Permitting Authority will issue
a Final Permit in accordance

. with the conditions of the pro-
- posed Draft Permit unless a

timely petition for an admin-
Istrettive hearing is fled under
Sections 120.569 and 120.57,
ES. or unless public comment
received in accordance with
this notice results in a different
decision or a significant
change of terms or condi-
tions.

Comments; The Permrmng
Authority will accept written
comments concerning the
proposed Draft Permit for a
period of 14 days from the
date of publication of the

Public Notice. Written com- *

ments must be postmarked
by the Permitting Authority by

" close of business (5:00 p.m.)

on or before the end of this
J4-day period. If written com-
mentsreceived result in a'sig-

_nificant change to the Dratt

Permit, the ° Permitting

* Authority shdl revise the Draft

Permit and require, if appli-
cable, another Public Notice.
All comments filed -will be
made available for public
inspection. )
Petitions: A person whose
substontid interests are offect-
od by the proposed permit-
ting decision may petition for
an administrative hearing in
accordance with Sections
120.569 and 120.57, FS. The

peftition must contain the

information set forth below
and, must be filed with
(received by) the Depart-
ment's Agency Clerk in the
Office of General Counsel of
the .Department of Environ-
mental Protection at 3900

" Commonwealth Boulevard,

Mail Station #35, Tallahasses, . -

Florida 32399-3000. Pstitions

- filed by dny- persons other

than thosg entified to written
notice under  Section
120.60(3), F.S. must be filed.

-within 14 days of public ation

of this Public Notice or receipt
of a written notice, whichev-

" RORA DIve, SGitS #4, Tallahas-
. ses, Florida. The Permitting
R ‘Authority’s maillng address is:

- _.4—._~.__,_‘_‘-,__‘_‘._ ——————-

er occurs first, Under Section
120.60(3), FS., however, any
' 'person who “asked the
Permitting Authority for notice

" of agency action may file a
“pstition within 14 days of

less of the' date of publica-

fion. A pefitioner shalt mail a .

copy of the petition:to the
applicant at the address indi-
cated above, at the time of
fiing. The failure of any person
to file a petition within the
appropricts time period shall

administretive determination
(hearing) under Sections

120.569 and 120.57,FS, or to ,
intervene in this proceeding
and participate as a party to.

it. Any subsequent interven-
tion (in a proceeding initiated

siding officer upon the fiing of

Rule 28-106.205,FA.C. ..
A petition that disputes

the Permitting Authority’s
action is based must contai
the following information:
The name and address of
each agency affected and

cation number, if known: (b)
- The name, address and tele-
. phone number of the peti-
tioner; the name address and
telephone number of the

any, which shall, be the
address for service purposes
»during the course of the pro-
ceeding and an explanation

stantial rights will be affect-
ed by the agency determi-
nation; (¢) A statement of
when and how the petitioner
received notice of the
, agency action or proposed

all disputed issues of mcﬂenol

pemlon must so state; (@A
concise statement of the

ing the spécific facts the peti-
tioner
reversal or modfication of the
agency's proposed action;

ic rules 'or statutes the peti-
tioner contends require rever-
“sal or modification of the
agency’s proposed action
including an explanation of

‘to the specific rules or
statutes; and, (g) A statement
of the relief sought by the
petitioner, stating. precisely
y the action the petitioner wish-
es the agency to take with
raspect to the agency’s pro-
posed action. A petition that

al facts upon which the

erwise shall contain the same
information’ as set forth
- above, ds required by Rule
28-106.30],FAC.
Because the administra-
tive -hearing process Is

agency action, the filing of a
petition means that the
Permitting Authority’s final
[ action may be different from
the position taken by it in this

stantial interasts will be affect-
ed by any such final decision

the application have the right

to the proceeding, in accor-
dance with the requirements
set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation Is
- not available-for this-pro-
| ceeding. :
H 09-19-2007
6130

receipt of that notice, regard-’

‘constitute a waiver of that
person’s right to request an

by another party) will be only .
at the approval of the pre-
amotion in compliance with -

the material facts on which !

“fact. If there ‘are none, the -

utimdite facts dleded, includ-

() A statement of the specit-

. Permitting Authority’s actionls
based shdl state thatno such
facts are in dispute and oth- .

designed to formulate final |

- each agency’s file or identifi- |

pefitioner’s representativé, if

. of how the petitioner’s sub- |

decision; (d) A statement of

contends . warrant .

" how the alleged facts relate +

does not dispute the materl- -

i Public Notice of Intent to lssue
Alr Permit. Persons whose sub-

of the Permitting Authority on

to petition to become aparty "

PO

FLORIDA'S WEEXKLY NEWSPAPER

NEWS A LEADER

Published Weekly
511 Ash Street/P.O. Box 766 (904) 261-3696
Fernandina Beach, Nassau County, Florida 32034

OLDEST

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF NASSAU:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
Michael B. Hankins

who on oath says that he is the Advertising Director
of The Fernandina Beach News-Leader, a weekly
newspaper published at Fernandina Beach in Nassau
County, Florida; that the attached copy of
advertisement, being a Legal Notice

in the matter of

PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT

TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises

was published in said newspaper in the issues of
09-19-2007

ref. No. 6130

Affiant further says that the said Fernandina Beach
News-Leader is a newspaper published at Fernandina
Beach, in said Nassau County, Florida, and that the
said newspaper has heretofore been continuously
published in said Nassau County, Florida, each week
and has been entered as second class mail matter at
the post office in Fernandina Beach in said Nassau
County, Florida, for a period of one year next
preceding the first publication of the attached copy

of advertisement; and affiant further says that he has
neither paid nor promised any person, firm or
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement
for publication in the said newspaper.

Ytel P15 L

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this 19th day of September, A.D. 2007.

S
; M~ ‘5
@F’érsonally Known > § %
LEET [ a8
&% ROBERTO FIEGE 3 thd o &
w MY COMMISSION # DD317112 §
W O%s  EXPIRES: May 31, 2008 O o %
14003.NOTARY  FL. NOWYP“ Assac Co. Lu w §
o S



Harvey, Mary

From: Kirts, Christopher

To: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Wednesday, September 12, 2007 12:56 PM

Subject: Read: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises,
Inc.

Your message

To: 'Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’; 'Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'; Kirts,
Christopher; 'Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc."; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4'; 'Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Sent: 9/10/2007 3:53 PM

was read on 9/12/2007 12:56 PM.
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Harvey, Mary

From: Mitchell, Bruce

Sent: Tuesday, September 11, 2007 9:49 AM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: RE: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, inc.

9/11/07
Dear Mary,
Good morning and many thanks for handling the project. Have a great day.

Bruce

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 3:53 PM

To: 'Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’; 'Mr. Bili Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container
Enterprises, Inc.’; Kirts, Christopher; 'Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.'; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region
4'; 'Ms. Kathieen Forney, EPA Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
done by selecting "Reply” on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send".
We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail
transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open
and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be
downloaded for free at the following internet site:
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.htmi.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other
correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide
greater service to the applicant and the engineering community. Please advise this office of
any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

9/11/2007
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Harvey, Mary

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 3:53 PM

To: ‘Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’; 'Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-

Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’; Kirts, Christopher; 'Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates,
Inc.’; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4'; 'Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria
Subject: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Attachments: 0890003.019.AC.R_pdf.zip
Tracking: Reggjent Read
(_r. GeerGe Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'
\_)Hﬁ?e(g'ews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'
rts, Christopher Read: 9/12/2007 12:56 PM

. Jgemes Little, EPA Region 4'
\-"P(:a:’é en Forney, EPA Region 4'
Mu/ﬁe
M&y Read: 9/10/2007 4:26 PM

Gibson, Victoria

L@ Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.'
I r <

Dear Sir/fMadam:

Flease send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
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
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

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

9/17/2007
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Harvey, Mary

From: Langstaff, George [GLANGSTA@SMURFIT.COM]

Sent: Monday, September 10, 20C7 4:07 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Cc: Crews, Bill

Subject: RE: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Mary,
As requested, this will serve as confirmation of our receipt of the referenced material.

Bill and his team will review and advise if there are any questions.

Thanks,

George Langstatt

work Fernandina Mill: (904) 277-5723
cell: (314) 409-1428

glangstaff@smurfit.com

From: Harvey, Mary [mailto:Mary.Harvey@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 3:53 PM

To: Langstaff, George; Crews, Bill; Kirts, Christopher; Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.; Mr.
James Little, EPA Region 4; Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply” message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may
be done by selecting "Reply” on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting
"Send". We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent
e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please
open and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Fermat (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can
be downioaded for free at the following internet site:
hitp://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and
other correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to

9/10/2007



Harvey, Mary

From: Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 3:56 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Re: FW: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container

Enterprises, Inc.

arvey, Mary"”
<Mary.Harvey@dep
.state.fl.us> To
Kathleen Forney/R4/USEPA/USREPA
09/10/2007 03:55 cc

Subject

FW: Draft Permit
#0820003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B -
Smurfit-Stone Container
Enterprises, Inc.
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Harvey, Mary

From: Buff, Dave [DBuff@GOLDER.com]

To: undisclosed-recipients

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 4:08 PM

Subject: Read: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises,
Inc.

Your message

To: DBuff@GOLDER.com
Subject:

was read on 9/10/2007 4:08 PM.



Harvey, Mary

From: Crews, Bill [ BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM]

To: undisclosed-recipients

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2007 4:04 PM

Subject: Read: Draft Permit #0890003-019-AC-/PSD-FL-062B - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises,
Inc.

Your message

To: BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM
Subject:

was read on 9/10/2007 4:04 PM.



L Florida Department of - Charlie Crist
Environmental Protection Jeff Kottkamp

. Lt. Governor
Bob Martinez Center

2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

September 7, 2007 .

Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

North 8" Street

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

Re: Draft Permit Nos. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
Fernandina Beach Mill, No. 7 Power Boiler
Revisions to Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062
Revised Draft Permit Package

Dear Mr. Langstaff:

On March 6, 2007, you submitted an application to remove a limit on the fuel sulfur content for coal and to
remove a requirement to meet Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of Title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 60 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter for the No. 7 Power Boiler at the Fernandina Beach
Mill. The Department’s permitting package issued electronically on July 17, 2007, is hereby rescinded.
Enclosed is a revised draft permit package including the following documents:

e The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination summarizes the Permitting Authority’s technical
review of the application and provides the rationale for making the preliminary determination to issue a Draft
Permit.

¢ The proposed Draft Permit includes the specific conditions that regulate the emissions units covered by the
proposed project. '

¢ The Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit provides important information regarding: the Permitting
Authority’s intent to issue an air permit for the proposed project; the requirements for publishing a Public

Notice of the Permitting Authority’s intent to issue an air permit; the procedures for submitting comments on.
the Draft Permit; the process for filing a petition for an administrative hearing; and the availability of

mediation.

e The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. ‘

Please submit any written comments you wish to have considered concerning the permitting authority’s proposed
action to Jeff Koerner at the above letterhead address. If you have any questions, please contact the project
engineer, Bruce Mitchell, at 850/413-9198.

Sincerely,é\/ )
Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

Enclosures

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state.fl.us



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an
Application for Air Permit by:

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. Air Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
North 8" Street . Facility ID No. 0890003
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 Fernandina Beach Mill
No. 7 Power Boiler, Permit Revisions
Authorized Representative: Revised Draft Permit
Mr. George Q. Langstaff,'V.P., Regional Mill Operations Nassau County, Florida

Facility Location: The applicant, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., operates an existing Kraft pulp and
paper mill located in Nassau County at North 8" Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida.

Project: The No. 7 Power Boiler was originally permitted in 1981. At that time, EPA Region 4 issued the
preconstruction review permit for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality and the
Department issued the state air construction permit. The applicant requests revision of these permits to remove a
limit on the fuel sulfur content for coal and to remove a requirement to meet Performance Specification 3 in
Appendix B of Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter. Since these
permit conditions originate from historical EPA and Department construction permits, the Bureau of Air
Regulation is the permitting authority for considering the requests.

After review of the historical permitting documents, the Department finds it unnecessary to revise the permit with
regard to the fuel sulfur limit. Although the draft permit included a limit on the coal fuel sulfur, the final permit
uses the actual fuel sulfur from coal sampling and analysis to calculate the predicted sulfur dioxide emissions to
ensure continual compliance. The Department determined that the requirement to meet Performance
Specification 3 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter could be removed because the meter is used to measure the
oxygen content of the exhaust from the boiler flue for promoting good combustion practices. Pursuant to Rule
62-297.310(7), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), the Department will also clarify the permit to establish
annual testing to demonstrate compliance with emissions standards for nitrogen oxides, particulate matter, sulfur
dioxide and opacity.

The Department rescinds the original draft permit package issued on July 17, 2007, and issues this revised draft
permit package.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and F.A.C. Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212. The proposed
project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed
work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination
for this project. The Permitting Authority’s physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4,
Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/488-0114.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the
applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of the
proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate
provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will
issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an
administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in
accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the

Fernandina Beach Mill Project No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler, Revised Draft Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 1 of 4



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit
(Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The newspaper
used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take
place. If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at
above address or phone number. Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide
proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address within 7 days of publication. Failure to
publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-
110.106(11), F.A.C. '

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a
period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be postmarked by
the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period. If written
comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the
Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments filed will be made available for
public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for
an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain the
information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of
General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station
#35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by the applicant or any of the parties listed below must be
filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Petitions filed by any persons
other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of
publication of the attached Public Notice or within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permit, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting
Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the
date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above,
at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute
a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and
120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention (in a
proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a
motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C. '

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification
number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address and
telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during
the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by
the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action
or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must
so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends
warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes
the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation
of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the
petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s
proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action
is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth
above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Written

Fernandina Beach Mill Project No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler, Revised Draft ‘ Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 2 of 4



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final

decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.
Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

Fernandina Beach Mill

Project No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler, Revised Draft

Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 3 of 4



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Written Notice of Intent to Issue
Air Permit package (including the Public Notice, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, and
the Revised Draft Permit) was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested before the close of business
on 67, /0' 07 to the persons listed below.

cc:  Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (glangsta@smurfit.com)
Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (bcrews@smurfit.com)
Mr. Chris Kirts, Northeast District (Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuffi@golder.com)
Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4 (Little.James@epa.gov)
Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4 (Forney.Kathleen@epa.gov)

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date,
pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the
designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby

Mﬁ#ﬂﬂ/ 7.//0/07

(Cle¥f) (Date)

Fernandina Beach Miil Project No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler, Revised Draft _ Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 4 of 4



PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florida Department of Environmental Protection (Department)
Division of Air Resource Management, Bureau of Air Regulation

Draft Air Permit Nos. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., Fernandina Beach Mill

Nassau County, Florida

Applicant: The applicant. for this project is Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. The applicant’s
authorized representative and mailing address is: Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations,
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., North 8" Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034.

Facility Location: The applicant, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., operates an existing Kraft pulp
and paper mill located in Nassau County at North 8" Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida.

Project: The No. 7 Power Boiler was originally permitted in 1981. At that time, EPA Region 4 issued the
preconstruction review permit for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality and the
Department issued the state air construction permit. The applicant requests revision of these permits to remove
a limit on the fuel sulfur content for coal and to remove a requirement to meet Performance Specification 3 in
Appendix B of Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter. Since
these permit conditions originate from historical EPA and Department construction permits, the Bureau of Air
Regulation is the permitting authority for considering the requests.

After review of the historical permitting documents, the Department finds it unnecessary to revise the permit
with regard to the fuel sulfur limit. Although the draft permit included a limit on the coal fuel sulfur, the final
permit uses the actual fuel sulfur from coal sampling and analysis to calculate the predicted sulfur dioxide
emissions to ensure continual compliance. The Department determined that the requirement to meet
Performance Specification 3 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter could be removed because the meter is used
to measure the oxygen content of the exhaust from the boiler flue for promoting good combustion practices.
Pursuant to Rule 62-297.310(7), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), the Department will also clarify the
permit to establish annual testing to demonstrate compliance with emissions standards for particulate matter,
nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and opacity.

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

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the
Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of
confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s
project review engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above. In addition,
electronic copies of these documents are available on the following web site:
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/eproducts/apds/default.asp.

Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit
to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that
operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all
appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting
Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a

(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)



PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public
comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms
or conditions.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for
a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be postmarked
by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period. If .
written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall
revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments filed will be made
available for public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition
for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain
the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the
Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard,
Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to
written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within 14 days of publication of this Public Notice or
receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who
asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that
notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the
address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate
time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing)
under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any
subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding
officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or
identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner; the name
address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service
purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial rights will
be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the
agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the
petition must so state; (¢) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the
petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the
specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed
action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A
statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to
take with respect to the agency’s proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon
which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available for this proceeding.

(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)
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PROJECT

Draft Permit No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
Revisions to Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062
No. 7 Power Boiler, Fernandina Beach Mill
Revised Draft Permit Package

APPLICANT

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
North 8" Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida- 32034

Nassau County, Florida

Fernandina Beach Mill
ARMS Facility ID No. 0890003

PERMITTING AUTHORITY

Air Permitting North
Bureau of Air Regulation
Division of Air Resource Management
Department of Environmental Protection (Department)

September 7, 2007

{Filename: 0890003-019-AC -1 REVISED TEPD.DOC}



TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

1. GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION
Applicant and Facility

The applicant, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., operates the Fernandina Beach Mill, which is an
existing pulp and paper mill (SIC Nos. 2631 and 2653) located in Nassau County at North 8" Street, Fernandina
Beach, Florida. The UTM coordinates are: Zone 17; 456.2 km East; and, 3394.1 km North. This facility is a fully
integrated Kraft linerboard mill that consists of a wood yard, pulp mill, recycle plant, chemical recovery plant,
power house, paperboard mill and corrugated containers plant. The primary regulatory categories are:

e The mill is a major source of hazardous air pollutants.
e The mill has no units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

e The mill is a Title V major source of air pollutibn in accordance with Chapter 213, Florida Administrative
Code (F.A.C.).

e The mill is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of
Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.

Project Description

The No. 7 Power Boiler is an existing unit with a permitted capacity of 1021 MMBtu of heat input per hour. It
was originally authorized to fire coal and wood as the primary fuel, as well as No. 6 fuel oil for startup, shutdown,
and when coal is not available. It was constructed in accordance with the following air construction permits: No.
AC45-35532 issued by the Department on March 12, 1981 and PSD-FL-062 issued by Region 4 of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on April 13, 1981. At that time, EPA Region 4 was processing PSD
permits under the federal program for Florida. The current Title V air operation permit includes two conditions
that the applicant requests be deleted: a limit on the fuel sulfur content for coal and the requirement to meet
Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 60 for the
existing flue gas oxygen meter. Since these permit conditions originate from historical EPA and Department
construction permits, the Bureau of Air Regulation is the permitting authority for considering the requests.

Processing Schedule
03/06/07: Received application for revised PSD and air construction permit conditions.

04/11/07: Requested additional information.

05/04/07: Received additional information; application complete.

2. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

The project is subject to the following regulatory requirements: the applicable environmental laws in Section 403
of the Florida Statutes (F.S.); the applicable air quality regulations in the F.A.C. Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210,
62-212, 62-213, 62-296 and 62-297; and the applicable air quality regulations in Parts 60, 61 and 63 of Title 40 of
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). The project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review because the
request is to revise existing permit conditions that will not result in any emissions increases. There are no newly
applicable state or federal regulations resulting from the request.

3. DEPARTMENT REVIEW

Fuel Sulfur Limit on Coal

Request: The applicant requests that the fuel sulfur limit of the coal be deleted from the original air construction
permits. The current sulfur dioxide (SO,) standard is in units of “Ib/MMBtu of heat input”. Compliance with this
standard has historically been demonstrated by fuel sampling and analysis.

Stone Container Corporation _ Draft Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
Fernandina Beach Mill, Revised Draft Revised PSD Permit PSD-FL-062B
Page 2 of 4



TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

Determination: The Department researched the original and subsequent permitting documents. The EPA PSD
permit specifies the SO, standard in units of “lb/MMBtu of heat input” and does not include a limit of fuel sulfur
for coal. In fact, the permit includes a requirement to design into the project adequate room for a flue gas
desulfurization system if low sulfur coal is not available. The Department’s draft permit included a limit of
0.75% sulfur by weight for coal. However, the final permit (see specific condition No. 8) specifies the use of an
equation to determine compliance with the SO, standard based on the measured fuel sulfur content. This allows a
determination of the acceptability of the coal prior to it being shipped from the mine to the mill. The equation
includes a factor that assumes that a small fraction of available fuel sulfur is not converted to SO, or is absorbed
by the alkaline fly ash. This issue is specifically addressed in the Final Determination dated March 9, 1981.
Since there is no specific [imit on fuel sulfur in either permit, no changes are necessary. The fuel sulfur limit may
be removed from the Title V permit.

Fuel sulfur sampling and analysis in conjunction with the specified equation is used as periodic monitoring
between tests to provide reasonable assurance of compliance on a continual basis. Compliance with the SO,
emissions standard in terms of [b/MMBtu must be demonstrated by conducting tests in accordance with EPA
Method 6. Therefore, the Department will revise the Department’s permit to require annual stack testing pursuant
to Rule 62-297.310(7), F.A.C. to demonstrate compliance with the SO, emissions standard. This will also provide
reasonable assurance that the assumptions regarding the available fuel sulfur remain valid. In addition, Rule 62-
297.310(7), F.A.C. requires annual testing to demonstrate compliance with the permitted emissions standards for
particulate matter, SO,, nitrogen oxides (NOx), and opacity.

Flue Gas Oxygen Meter

Request: The PSD permit requires installation and operation of a continuous oxygen monitoring system that
meets Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60. The purpose of the oxygen monitoring system
was to establish set points that represent good combustion practices for minimizing emissions of NOx and carbon
monoxide (CO). To satisfy this requirement, the applicant installed and operates a flue gas oxygen meter in the
economizer section of the boiler that provides immediate feedback to the operator to make combustion air
adjustments. This type of meter at this location satisfies the purpose of the permit condition, but cannot meet the
requirements of Performance Specification 3. Therefore, the applicant requests that the condition be revised
accordingly.

Determination: The Department researched the original and subsequent permitting documents. The No. 7 Power
Boiler is subject to the applicable provisions of Subpart D in 40 CFR 60. This includes emissions limiting and
monitoring standards for NOx and SO,. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.45(a)(2), a continuous emissions monitoring
system (CEMS) was not required for SO, because a monitoring protocol based on fuel sampling and analysis was
approved on December 11, 1989. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.45(a)(3), a CEMS for NOx was not required because
initial test results (December 7, 1984) showed actual emissions were less than 70% of the applicable Subpart D
standard. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.45(a)(4), an oxygen monitoring system meeting the requirements of
Performance Specification 3 is not required because the SO, and NOy CEMS are not required.

Neither permit requires an SO, or NOy CEMS. The Department’s permit only requires an oxygen monitoring
system to meet the Subpart D provisions, which do not require the installation of an oxygen monitoring system
when SO, and NOx CEMS are not required. The EPA permit requires the permittee to minimize NOy formation
by optimizing combustion conditions through the use of a flue gas oxygen meter in accordance with an
attachment to the permit. The permit attachment requires a continuous oxygen monitoring system that meets
Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60. It also requires CO (EPA Method 10) and NOy (EPA
Method 7) tests to establish oxygen set points for purposes of minimizing these emissions.

After providing written notification to the Department on August 18, 1983, the permittee installed a flue gas
oxygen meter in the economizer section of the boiler for purposes of adjusting combustion air to ensure good
combustion. At this location, it is not possible to meet the requirements of Performance Specification 3. Based
on testing, the oxygen set points were established as 2.7% and 7.7%. This oxygen operational range was
specified in the subsequent air operation permits including the latest Title V air operation permit. In a letter dated

Stone Container Corporation Draft Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
Fernandina Beach Mill, Revised Draft Revised PSD Permit PSD-FL-062B
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

October 30, 2002, the Department clarified that the averaging period for the oxygen set points was a 3-hour
average. .

The applicant provided information from the boiler manufacturer identifying that locating the oxygen meter in the
economizer section of the boiler is typical and provides useful feedback to the operator for implementing good
combustion practices. Although an oxygen monitor could be located in the stack that would meet Performance
Specification 3, the results would be diluted by air drawn into the equipment and ductwork (e.g., air heater
leakage) and not reflect the true flue gas oxygen content. Although useful for correcting stack gases to a specific
oxygen level, the monitor loses effectiveness for providing quick feedback to the operator as a representative
measurement of the flue gas oxygen level.

Based on the history for this unit and the stated purpose of using the flue gas oxygen meter for good combustion
practices, the Department agrees to remove the requirement to meet Performance Specification 3. However, the
Department will also revise the air construction permit to require the permittee to conduct annual testing in
accordance with EPA Method 7 to demonstrate compliance with the NOx emissions standards. Concurrent with
each annual NOx test, testing in accordance with EPA Method 10 will be required to determine CO emissions.
The permittee will be required to verify that the current oxygen set points (2.7% and 7.7%) continue to represent
good combustion practices.

In an initial draft permit package issued on July 17, 2007, the Department required daily calibrations of the
oxygen monitor. After discussions with the equipment vendor, Yokigawa, and additional information provided
by the applicant, the Department revised this frequency to at least monthly. The existing oxygen monitor has
shown to be stable and limited adjustments have been necessary. The oxygen level is used as an input parameter
to the automated control system to adjust the combustion air. The oxygen level is recorded in three separate data
bases: the plant information system, the automated control system, and the environmental reporting system.

Fuel Oil Sulfur Issue

During the processing of this request, the Department also reviewed the issue of the sulfur content of No. 6 fuel
oil fired for startup, shutdown, and when coal is not available. For oil-fired units, Subpart D establishes emissions
standards for SO,, NOy and particulate matter. When firing No. 6 fuel oil with a sulfur content of 2.5% by _
weight, it would not be possible to comply with the SO, standard of 0.80 Ib/MMBtu. However, based on previous
determinations by EPA (e.g., Applicability Determinations Nos. D097 and NB29), the Subpart D standards do not
apply during periods of startup, shutdown and malfunction. Nevertheless, emissions during these periods must be
limited to the extent practicable pursuant to 40 CFR 60.11(d).

The original Department permit allows fuel oil usage for startup, shutdown, and “when coal is not available”. The
applicant indicates that the boiler was originally designed to have 8 oil guns to achieve full capacity; however,
only 4 oil guns were installed. Based on this configuration, the boiler can only achieve approximately 30% of full
boiler load. This further shows that oil is not intended for or capable of sustaining normal operation. Since the
permit is open, the Department will revise the conditions to authorize oil firing for startup, shutdown and
malfunction to clarify that the Subpart D standards do not apply. In addition, it is noted that fuel oil firing for
steady-state operation was not considered during the original PSD preconstruction review and is not authorized by
this permit.

4. PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

The Department makes a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all applicable state
and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the revised draft permit. This determination is based on a
technical review of the complete application, reasonable assurances provided by the applicant, and the conditions
specified in the revised draft permit. No air quality modeling analysis is required because the project does not
result in a significant increase in emissions. Bruce Mitchell and Jeff Koerner reviewed the application and drafted
the permit.

Stone Container Corporation Draft Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
Fernandina Beach Mill, Revised Draft Revised PSD Permit PSD-FL-062B
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DRAFT

Sent by Electronic Mail - Received Receipt Requested

Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

North 8" Street . :

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 o

Re: Air Permit No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
Revises Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062
No. 7 Power Boiler, Fernandina Beach Mill

Dear Mr. Langstaft:

This letter revision modifies existing permit conditions to: clarify that the use of fuel oil is only for startup,
shutdown and malfunction in accordance with Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 60.11(d);
remove the requirement for the oxygen meter to meet Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60;
and impose annual tests for particulate matter (PM), sulfur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon
monoxide (CO) and opacity. Additions are double-underlined and deletions are single strike-through. This letter
shall be attached to the original permits.

This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.). Any party to this order has the right to
seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68, F.S., by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida
Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of
General Counsel, Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000, and by
filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court
of Appeal. The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.
(DRAFT)

Joseph Kahn, Director
Division of Air Resource Management

cc: Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (glangstaf@smurfit.com)
Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (bcrews@smurfit.com)
Mr. Chris Kirts, Northeast District (Christopher Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuff@golder.com)
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

procedures will be EPA reference methods 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9 as described in 40 CFR 60, Appendix A or
other approve methods. Minimum sampling time and volume will be as specified in new source performance
standard for this type of source. Stack sampling facilities will include the eyebolts and angle described in the

attached figures. During each federal fiscal year (September 1 — October 31), the permittee shall conduct testing
in accordance with the above methods to demonstrate compliance with the emissions standards for particulate
matter (PM), sulfur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxides (NOx), and opacity. During the NOy tests, the permittee shall

" also conduct reference method 10 tests to determine carbon monoxide (CQ) emissions and verify the minimum

“and max1mum set points for the flue gas oxygen meter Perfonnance tests shall t_ge conducted in accordance with

keeping and reporting regu1rements The Qollutant emission results shall be reported in terms of the emissions

standards.

[Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and 0890003-019-AC; Rule 62-297.310(7), F.A.C.]

Specific Condition 7 of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

Fuel oil may be used for start=ups, shut=down; and stand ble malfunction, but the

emissions during these periods must be minimized to the extent p_ractlcable gursuant to 40 CFR 60.11(d). The oil
will have a maximum sulfur content of 2.5%_by weight. he emissions standards of NSPS Subpart D do not

apply durmg startug, shutdown and malfunction.
[Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and 0890003-019-AC; 40 CFR 60.11(d)]

REVISION TO PERMIT NO. PSD-FL-062

The second -paragraph of Attachment II (Use of Flue Gas Oxygen Meter as BACT for Combustion
Controls) of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

practices, the permittee shall 1nstall, calibrate, operate and maintain an oxygen meter in the flue of the No. 7

Power Boiler to continuously monitor and record the oxygen content of the boiler flue gas. At least monthly, the
permittee shall calibrate the flue gas oxygen meter. Results of emission determinations shall be correlated to the

flue gas oxygen content to define:

Fernandina Beach Mill _ 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 2 of 2 '



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Trina Vielhauer, Bureau of Air Regulation

THROUGH: Jeff Koerner, Air Permitting No

FROM: Bruce Mitchell, Air Permitting orthgp(\r/

DATE: September 6, 2007

SUBJECT: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill

Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC and No. PSD-FL-062B
Revisions to-Permits Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062
Revised Draft Permit Package

This project is subject to minor source preconstruction review. Attached for your review are the following items:

e  Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; -

e Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit;

e Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination;
e Draft Permit; and

o P.E. Certification.

The draft permit revises original Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062 for the No. 7 Power Boiler at the
Fernandina Beach Mill. The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination provides a detailed description
of the project and the rationale for issuance. The P.E. certification briefly summarizes the proposed project. We
recommend your approval of the attached Draft Permit.

The original draft permit was issued electronically on July 17, 2007. The proposed action contained a
requirement to calibrate an existing oxygen monitor “at least daily”. The permittee had an issue with the daily
calibration requirement and filed a request for additional time to file for an administrative hearing, which was
granted by our Office of General Counsel on July 27. Since that time and based on discussions and
correspondence with company representatives, the issue has been resolved and the calibration requirement of the
monitor has been changed to “at least monthly”. Therefore, the cover letter conveys the Department’s intended
permitting action and rescinds the previously issued permitting package.

Attachments

TLV/jk/bm



Harvey, Mary

From: Kirts, Christopher

To: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 10:42 AM

Subject: Read: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: 'Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'; 'Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc."; Kirts,
Christopher; 'Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.'; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4'; '"Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Koerner, Jeff; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-ORAFT

Sent: 7/17/2007 3:37 PM

was read on 8/13/2007 10:42 AM.
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Harvey, Mary

From: Felton-Smith, Rita

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 10:46 AM

To: Harvey, Mary ‘

Subject: FW: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Attachments: 0890003.019.AC.D_pdf.zip

Mary,
| don't know if Chris responded, but we received it in the District.

Rita

Rita Felton-Smith

Air Permitting Engineer 1V

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Northeast District

(904) 807- 3237
Rita.Felton-Smith@dep.state.fl.us

From: Kirts, Christopher

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 10:43 AM

To: Felton-Smith, Rita

Subject: FW: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, inc. - 089C003-019-AC-DRAFT

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2007 3:37 PM

To: 'Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'; 'Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container
Enterprises, Inc.'; Kirts, Christopher; '"Mr. David 3uff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.”; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region
4'; 'Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Koerner, Jeff; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Dear Sir/fMadam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receip: of the attached document(s); this may be
done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send".
We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will precluce subseguent e-mail
transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified iime frame. Please open
and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be
downloaded for free at the following internet site:

8/14/2007



Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: . Wednesday, July 18, 2007 8:52 AM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

From: Crews, Bill [mailto:BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM]

Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2007 8:33 AM |

To: undisclosed-recipients

Subject: Read: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM
Subject:

was.read on 7/18/2007 8:33 AM.



Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2007 3:55 PM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

From: Buff, Dave [mailto:DBuff@GOLDER.com]

Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2007 3:41 PM

To: undisclosed-recipients

Subject: Read: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: DBUff@GOLDER.com
Subject:

was read on 7/17/2007 3:41 PM.
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Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2007 3:39 PM

To: 'Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4'; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4'
Cc: Koerner, Jeff, Adams, Patty :
Subject: FW: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Attachments: 0890003-019-AC - DRAFT - Letter Revision.PDF; 0830003-019-AC - DRAFT - Written Notice .PDF; 0830003-
019-AC - DRAFT- TEPD.PDF; 0890003-019-AC DRAFT - Public Notice.PDF; Signed Document for Facility
#0890003-019-AC-DRAFT.pdf

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2007 3:37 PM

To: 'Mr. George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.'; 'Mr. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.’;
Kirts, Christopher; 'Mr. David Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc.'; 'Mr. James Little, EPA Region 4'; 'Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA

. Region 4'

Cc: Mitchell, Bruce; Koerner, Jeff; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. - 0890003-019-AC-DRAFT

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by selecting
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

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded for
free at the following internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other correspondence
in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the applicant
and the engineering community. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of
the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

7/19/2007



H . Charlie Crist
Florida Department of e Crist
EnVl ron mental PfOteCtlon leff Kottkamp
Lt. Governor
Bob Martinez Center

2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

July 17, 2007

Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprlses Inc.

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
Mill. Enclosed are the following documents:

s The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination summarizes the Permitting Authority’s technical
review of the application and provides the rationale for making the preliminary determination to issue a Draft
Permit.

e The proposed Draft Permit includes the specific conditions that regulate the emissions units covered by the
proposed project.

» The Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit provides important information regarding: the Permitting
Authority’s intent to issue an air permit for the proposed project; the requirements for publishing a Public
Notice of the Permitting Authority’s intent to issue an air permit; the procedures for submitting comments on
the Draft Permit; the process for filing a petition for an administrative hearing; and the availability of
mediation.

e The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.

Please submit any written comments you wish to have considered concerning the permitting authority’s proposed
action to Jeff Koerner at the above letterhead address. If you have any questlons please contact the project
engineer, Bruce Mitchell, at 850/413-9198.

Sincerely,

Ny Vo

éo‘( Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

Enclosures

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep. state.fl.us



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Nebter d Voo~

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
the ,?raft Permit) was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested before the close of business on

cc: Mr.

to the persons listed below.

George Langstaff, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (glangstaf@smurfit.com)
. Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (bcrews@smurfit.com)
. Chris Kirts, Northeast District (Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)

. David Buft, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuffi@golder.com)
. James Little, EPA Region 4 (Little.James(@epa.gov)

. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4 (Forney.Kathleen@epa.gov)

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date,
pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the
designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged.

Wi 7) /o7

ﬂ (Clerk) 0 (Date)

Fernandina Beach Mill
No. 7 Power Boiler

Project No. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
Page 3 of 3



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Trina Vielhauer, Bureau of Air Regulation
THROUGH: Jeff Koemer, Air Permitting Nortl%/t
FROM: Bruce Mitchell, Air Permitting North
DATE: July 16, 2007

SUBIJECT: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill ,
Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC and No.PSD-FL-062B
Revisions to Permits Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062

This project is subject to minor source preconstruction review. Attached for your review are the following items:

e  Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit;

¢ Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit;

¢ Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination;
e Draft Permit; and

s P.E. Certification.

The draft permit revises original Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and PSD-FL-062 for the No. 7 Power Boiler at the
Fernandina Beach Mill. The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination provides a detailed description
of the project and the rationale for issuance. The P.E. certification briefly summarizes the proposed project. We
recommend your approval of the attached Draft Permit. '

Attachments

TLV/jk/bm



P.E. CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

PERMITTEE
Smurﬁt-hStone Container Enterprises, Inc. " Project Nos. 0890003-019-AC / PSD-FL-062B
t
North 8 . Street . _ Fernandina Beach Mill
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 No. 7 Power Boiler, Permit Revisions
Nassau, Florida
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The No. 7 Power Boiler was originally permitted in 1981. At that time, EPA Region 4 issued the preconstruction
review permit for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality (No. PSD-FL-062) and the
Department issued the state air construction permit (No. AC45-35532). The applicant requests revision of these
permits to remove a limit on the fuel sulfur content for coal and to remove a requirement to meet Performance
Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60 for the existing flue gas oxygen meter. Since these permit
conditions originate from historical EPA and Department construction permits, the Bureau of Air Regulation is
the permitting authority for considering the requests.

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
62-297.310(7), F.A.C., the Department will also clarify the permit to establish annual testing to demonstrate‘ »
compliance with emissions standards for particulate matter, nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and opgcq \Yiﬁ o : ,‘

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the air pollution control engineering features described in the aboye 1@? enéed
application and subject to the proposed permit conditions provide reasonable assurance of comﬁzanq’e w;th
applicable provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, and Florida Administrative Code ChapterS-éZ 4¢ana’ 62—
204 through 62-297. However, I have not evaluated and I do not certify aspects of the proposa‘Z duzgzde of- ﬂgy@g
area of expertise (including, but not limited to, the electrical, mechanical, structural, hydrologz&dl geologlcalﬂg

and meteorological features). < l\}& R 7 &L ,v
LS 4 'b 'l & b
. ’/‘ '\S‘\;A‘) faepsce ﬁ,{:
v 7 '}.’@ﬂﬂﬁ\ x
‘ Z“"”“W L o

Jeffery F. Koerner, P.E. (Date)
Registration Number: 49441

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management e Bureau of Air Regulation e Air Permitting North Program
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505 e Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an
Application for Air Permit by:

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. Air Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
North 8™ Street Facility ID No. 0890003
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 Fernandina Beach Mill
No. 7 Power Boiler
Authorized Representative: Permit Revisions
Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operatlons Nassau County, Florida

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
accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions. -

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
Page 1 of 3



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
110.106(11), F.A.C.

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
public inspection. '

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

" Permit, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting
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
motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

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
the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agericy action
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

Applicant: The applicant for this project is Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. The applicant’s
authorized representative and mailing address is: Mr. George Q. Langstaff, V.P., Regional Mill Operations,
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., North 8" Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034.

Facility Location: The applicant, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc., operates an existing Kraft pulp
and paper mill located in Nassau County at North 8™ Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida.

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
for this project. - The Permitting Authority’s physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4,
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
by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period. If

- written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall
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
under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to.it. Any
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
petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the
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

e The mill is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, Florida Administrative
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
Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of Title 40, 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 60 for the -
existing flue gas oxygen meter. Since these permit conditions originate from historical EPA and Department
construction permits, the Bureau of Air Regulation is the permitting authority for considering the requests.

Processing Schedule
03/06/07: Received application for revised PSD and air construction permit conditions. .

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
Fernandina Beach Mill . Revised PSD Permit PSD-FL-062B
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
includes a factor that assumes that a small fraction of available fuel sulfur is not converted to SO; or is absorbed
by the alkaline fly ash. This issue is specifically addressed in the Final Determination dated March 9, 1981.
Since there is no specific limit on fuel sulfur in either permit, no changes are necessary. The fuel sulfur limit may
be removed from the Title V permit.

Fuel sulfur sampling and analysis in conjunction with the specified equation is used as periodic monitoring.
between tests to provide reasonable assurance of compliance on a continual basis. Compliance with the SO,
emissions standard in terms of lb/MMBtu must be demonstrated by conducting tests in accordance with EPA
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
particulate matter, SO,, nitrogen oxides (NOy), and opacity.

Flue Gas Oxygen Meter

Request: The PSD permit requires installation and operation of a continuous oxygen monitoring system that
meets Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60. The purpose of the oxygen monitoring system
was to establish set points that represent good combustion practices for minimizing emissions of NOx carbon
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
accordingly. '

Determination: The Department researched the original and subsequent permitting documents. The No. 7 Power
Boiler is subject to the applicable provisions of Subpart D in 40 CFR 60. This includes emissions limiting and
monitoring standards for NOy and SO,. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.45(a)(2), a continuous emissions monitoring
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
Performance Specification 3 is not required because the SO, and NOx CEMS are not required.

Neither permit requires an SO, or NOx CEMS. The Department’s permit only requires an oxygen monitoring
system to meet the Subpart D provisions, which do not require the installation of an oxygen monitoring system
when SO, and NOx CEMS are not required. The EPA permit requires the permittee to minimize NOx formation
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

Stone Container Corporation : ' Draft Permit No. 0890003-019-AC
Fernandina Beach Mill Revised PSD Permit PSD-FL-062B
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

October 30, 2002, the Department clarified that the averaging period for the oxygen set points was a 3-hour
average.

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
Department will also revise the air construction permit to require the permittee to conduct annual testing in '
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
standards for SO,, NOx and particulate matter. When firing No. 6 fuel oil with a sulfur content of 2.5% by
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
and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the draft permit. This determination is based on a technical
review of the complete application, reasonable assurances provided by the applicant, and the conditions specified
in the draft permit. No air quality modeling analysis is required because the project does not result in a significant
increase in emissions. Bruce Mitchell and Jeff Koerner reviewed the application and drafted the permit.

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
shutdown and malfunction in accordance with Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 60.11(d); remove
the requirement for the oxygen meter to meet Performance Specification 3 in Appendix B of 40 CFR 60; and
impose annual tests for particulate matter, sulfur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO)
and opacity. Additions are double-underlined and deletions are single strike-through. This letter shall be
attached to the original permits. ' :

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

Joseph Kahn, Director _
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
attached figures. During each federal fiscal year (September 1 — October 3 1), the permittee shall conduct testin

in accordance with the ve method onstrate compliance with the emissions standards for particula
Ifur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxide x), an city. During the NOx he permittee shall als
conduct reference method 10 tests to determine car noxide (CO) emissions and verify the minimum an

maxnm m set points for the flue gas oxygen me er Perf rmance e ts shall be conducted in accordance with the

keeping and reporting re u1rement Th ollutant emission results shall be reported in terms of the emissions
standards.

[Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and 0890003-019-AC; Rule 62-297.310(7), F.A.C.]

Specific Condition 7 of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

Fuel oil may be used for start=ups, shut<down; and stan€ able malfunction, but the

emissions during these periods must be minimized to the extent Qrgcycable Qurguant to 40 CFR 60.11(d). The oil
will have a maximum sulfur content of 2.5% by weight. The emissions standards of NSPS Subpart D do not

apply during startup, shutdown and malfunction.

Permit Nos. AC45-35532 and 0890003-019-AC:; 40 CFR 60.11(d

REVISION TO PERMIT NO. PSD-FL-062

The second paragraph of Attachment II (Use of Flue Gas Oxygen Meter as BACT for Combustion
Controls) of this permit is hereby revised as follows:

ractices, the permittee hall mstall calibrate, operate and maintain an oxygen meter in the flue of the No.

Power Boiler to continugusly monitor and record the oxvgen content of the boiler flue gas. At least daily, the
permittee shall calibrate the flue gas oxygen meter, Results of emission determinations shall be correlated to the

flue gas oxygen content to define:

Fernandina Beach Mill : 0890003-019-AC/PSD-FL-062B
No. 7 Power Boiler ' Revisions to Original Permit Conditions
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fl'/‘ﬁ CQ\JU\
Mitchell, Bruce
From: Davis, Rachel G. [RGDAVIS@SMURFIT.COM]
Sent: Friday, May 11, 2007 10:37 AM
To: Mitchell, Bruce
Cc: Crews, Bill
Subject: Updated Coal Tables for No. 7 Power Boiler

Attachments: Tables for Response to RAl dated 41107rev.xls
Bruce,

As requested, please see attached highlighted worksheet with Btu/Ib values for each coal shipment ovér 0.75%
sulfur.

Please contact me if you need additional information.

Rachel Davis

Environmental Engineer

Smurfit Stone Container Corporation
Fernandina Beach Mill

'Phone (904) 277-7718

s-1-e1  kaly Forbwery (208 qlenn)
B e
Eertn f_-w\m‘l §-11-07 [ Y-
g« &%

5/11/2007



Table 2
No. 7 Power Boiler, Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC
Response to FDEP Request for Additional Information dated April 11, 2007

Historical Use of Coal over 0.75% Sulfur Content

% Sulfur S02
As Ib/million
Train # Ship Date | Received |BTU @ 100%

M921 1/8/2003 0.77 1.2 12,883

M925 2/24/2003 0.76 1.2 12,702

M928 3/20/2003 0.77 1.19 12,948

M922 7/3/2003 0.76 - 1.19 12,723

M932 10/22/2003 0.76 1.18 12,875

M934 11/20/2003 0.76 1.19 12,742

M936 12/10/2003 0.78 ' 1.19 13,124

M937 12/14/2003 0.76 1.15 13,180

M938 12/26/2003 0.77 1.19 12,937

Shipments >0.75 in 2003 9

Total Shipments in 2003 31

M921 2/2/2004 0.76 1.19 12,766

M923 9/11/2004 0.77 1.19 12,902

M928 11/6/2004 0.76 1.2 12,565

M929 11/18/2004 0.78 1.2 12,966

M930 11/30/2004 0.77 1.16 12,735

M931 12/6/2004 0.76 1.19 12,789

M932 12/9/2004 0.78 1.19 13,137

Shipments >0.75 in 2004 7

Total Shipments in 2004 32

M923 4/18/2005 0.76 1.14 13,335

M928 6/12/2005 0.78 1.19 13,098

M937 9/27/2005 0.76 1.2 12,685

M938 10/1/2005 0.79 1.2 13,122

M940 10/23/2005 0.78 1.19 13,076

Shipments >0.75 in 2005 5

Total Shipments in 2005 32

M929 1/18/2006 0.77 1.19 12,949

M928 10/2/2006 0.76 1.18 12,828

M936 12/20/2006 - . 0.76 1.15 13,174

M937 12/29/2006 0.76 1.2 12,685
- Shipments >0.75 in 2006 4

Total Shipments in 2006 29 -

Shipments >0.75 in 2007 0

Total Shipments in 2007 10

Total Shipments >0.75 . 25

Total Shipments 134

Smurfit Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill Page 1 of 1 5/11/2007
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. KSMURFIT_STONE :leoli'-{‘lhare‘ltdhinsizr:eetach Containerboard Mill

PO Box 2000
Fernandina Beach, FL 32035

(904) 261-5551
(904) 277-5888 fax

PR

CERTIFIED MAIL
7004 0750 0003 3874 1739

May 2, 2007
MAY 04 2007
Mr. Jeff Koerner, P. E.

Permitting Administrator BUREAU OF AR REGQU ATION
Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) s REGULATION
2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL 32399 oA

RE: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises — Fernandina Beach Mill
Response to Request for Additional Information
Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC

Dear Mr. Koerner:

On April 11, 2007, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises (Smurfit-Stone) received the
Department’s request for additional information regarding the above referenced permit
modification for the mill's No. 7 Power Boiler. The Department’s questions are repeated below
followed by Smurfit-Stone’s response:

1. For the last five shipments of coal received by the mill, provide the analyses of the coal’s
sulfur content, by weight, and the calculations demonstrating that the sulfur dioxide (SO5)
emissions will not exceed the limit of 1.2 Ibs/MMBtu.

Response: The requested information is summarized in the enclosed Table 1. Laboratory
analytical results are enclosed for each coal shipment.

2. Have you ever purchased and fired coal in the No. 7 Power Boiler with a sulfur content, by
weight, greater than 0.75 percent? If so, please provide documentation and the analyses and
dates received.

Response: Since 2003, 25 of 134 shipments of coal have been greater than 0.75 percent
sulfur, however none have exceeded the 1.2 Ibs SO,/MMBtu as specified in the Mill's Title V
permit during this time. The requested documentation is summarized in the enclosed Table 2.

3. Please detail the procedure used to calibrate the continuous oxygen monitoring system.
How often is the oxygen monitor calibrated? Please provide all data and performance curves
relating [to] five [combustion?] gas oxygen to carbon monoxide (CO) and nitrogen oxides (NOx)
emissions. Please provide the current performance curves or calculations used to demonstrate
compliance with the CO and NOx standards?

Response: The oxygen monitor is maintained and calibrated monthly in accordance with the
enclosed work instruction. This monitor measures boiler excess oxygen as a surrogate for CO
and NOx, and is therefore not a stack emissions monitor. It is located in the economizer section
of the boiler. The remaining information requested by the Department is not readily available
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Page 2 of 3

and is not germane to Smurfit-Stone’s request to clarify the QA/QC requirements for the
monitor.

4. Since the oxygen monitor is used to demonstrate compliance with the standards for NOx
and CO, when was the last date that the oxygen set points were verified or reestablished? How
was this done? Provide all the dates that the oxygen set points were verified or reestablished,
and provide the data and the results of these evaluations.

Response: The Oxygen set points were established by permit AO45-169854 based on
emissions testing as required by permit PSD-FL-062. The recently renewed Title V permit
specifies the criteria for updating these set points.

5. When was the oxygen monitor installed and calibrated? Have any hardware and/or
software upgrades been made on the existing oxygen monitoring system since its installation?
If so, please describe the upgrades and provide dates that the upgrades were made. Since
installation, has the manufacturer of the oxygen monitor been contacted by you to see if any
upgrades should be made? If so, please provide correspondence and documentation.

Response: The existing oxygen monitor was installed on 4/06/04 and last calibrated on
5/02/07. No upgrades have been made. This monitor measures boiler excess oxygen and is
therefore not a continuous emissions monitor. It serves its intended purpose. There has been
no reason to contact the manufacturer.

6. Please provide all of the dates that a relative accuracy test audit (RATA) has been
performed on the oxygen monitor since installation, as well as the results of those tests.

Response: A RATA has not been performed on this oxygen monitor. The oxygen monitor is
located in the economizer section of the boiler, not in the stack, therefore a RATA is not
possible. The purpose of this monitor is to measure boiler oxygen content, as an indicator of
combustion. The purpose of a RATA is to compare a stack monitor to stack conditions at
specified test port locations, which cannot be met in the economizer section of a boiler. Thus,
Smurfit-Stone is requesting that the requirement to comply with 40 CFR 60, Appendix B, PS3 be
deleted from the permit as this is an obvious misapplication of this performance specification.

7. Inthe coal sampling and analysis plan, references are made to an equation to calculate the.
maximum allowable suifur (S) content based on the SO; limit of 1.2 Ibs/MMBTU and the heating
value of the coal. That equationis:

%S (Maximum allowed) = (6.32 x 10°°) x (BTU/Ib)
How did you arrive at this equation? Please provide a detailed derivation.

Response: The derivation is the reverse of the equation provided in Item 1 above. However a
factor of 95% is included here to represent the percentage of coal sulfur that is emitted as SO,
per AP-42. This factor is not included in the calculations of item 1 above to provide the mill a
safety factor in the coal procurement process.
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%S = 121bsS0O; x MMBtu x 32.11bs S x Ibscoal x Btu x 100
MMBtu 10° Btu 64.1 Ibs SO, 0.951bs S Ib coal

8. Please provide a summary of all stack tests conducted for CO, NOx and SO, emissions,
including the corresponding flue gas oxygen content and unit load.

Response: Emissions testing for these pollutants has not been performed in the past 5 years
and is not readily available. This information is not germane to Smurfit-Stone’s request to
clarify the QA/QC requirements for this monitor.

9. Discussions with EPA indicate that it was EPA’s intent to establish a maximum sulfur
content limit for coal as Best Available Control Technology (BACT). Please comment.

Response: This appears to be contrary to all of the evidence contained in the permitting
history. In Attachment A of the March 13, 2007 permit application Smurfit-Stone provided a very
detailed explanation of the permitting history of this issue. If it was EPA’s intent to establish a
maximum sulfur content limit for coal then they would have specified this in the conditions of the
PSD permit.

Please contact me at (904) 277-7746 or by email at becrews@smurfit.com if you have any
questions. If these responses do not address all of the Department’s concerns, Smurfit-Stone
respectfully requests that a meeting be scheduled as soon as possible so that we might attempt
to resolve this issue without further written correspondence.

Sincerely,
William O. Crews
Environmental Manager

cC: S. Hamilton, SSCC

CERTIFIED MAIL

7004 0750 0003 3874 1746

Mr. Christopher Kirts, P.E.

District Air Program Administrator

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
7825 Baymeadows Way, Suite B200
Jacksonville, FL 32256-7590

Enclosures



Table 1
No. 7 Power Boiler, Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC

Response to FDEP Request for Additional Information dated April 11, 2007

Last 7 Shipments of Coal Received

Sulfur Content
SGS Lab Sample |y weight as| Btu/lb As S02
Report Date Date Received Received | lbs/MMBtu
4/25/2007| 4/21/2007 0.66% 12,933 1.02%
4/4/2007| 4/1/2007 0.70% 13,033 1.07%
3/26/2007{ 3/21/2007 0.66% 13,163 1.00%
3/1/2007| 2/24/2007 0.65% 13,127 0.99%
2/20/2007| 2/15/2007 0.67% 13,091 1.02%
2/15/2007| 2/8/2007 0.67% 13,087 1.02%
2/2/2007| 1/27/2007 0.73% 12,848 1.13%
Average 0.68% 13,058 1.04%

Lab Analysis Reports Attached

Calculations to Demonstrate Compliance w/ 1.2 Ibs/Mmbtu limit:
IbS02 = (%S)bS x 64.11bS0O2 x Ibcoal x 1,000,000 Btu

Mmbtu 100lbcoal 32.11bS (y) Btu/lb MMBtu

(%S) = percent sulfur by weight as received
(y) = Btu/lb as received

Smurfit Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill Page 1 of 1

5/2/2007



April 25, 2007

SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER
MILL DIVISION - -
P.O. BOX 2000 Sample identification by
FERNANDINA FL 32035 ELK RUN COAL CC.
ATTN: CORLISS BROWN
SAMPLE I.D.: TL M92§
FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COAL
reported to us
Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO.
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO.
Date sampled April 21, 2007
Date received April 22, 2007
Analysis Report No.  61-5411
SHORT PROXIMATE ANALYSIS
As Received Dxry Basis i
% Molsture 5.83 KHXXXXK
% Ash 9 .63 10.23
Btu/lb 12933 13734 MAF 15299 :
% Sulfur 0.66 0.70
S05; lb/million Btu @ 100% 1.02
% Chlorine 0.10 0.11

SGS Narth America Inc

Respecifully submitted,

SGS N?W :

Charleston Laboratary .

Minerals Services Division

5793 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV 25304  t(304) 925-6631  £{304) 925-8877 wwav.us.sgs.com/minerals

Member of the SGS Group
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE



April 25, 2007

SMURFII STONE
MILL DIVISION
P.O. BOX 2000
FERNANDINA FL
ATIN: CORLISS

Kind of sample
reported to us
‘Sample taken at
Sample taken by
Date sampled

Date received

CONIAINER
Sample identification by
32035 ELK RUN COAL CO.
BROWN )
SAMPLE I.D.: IL M926
FERNANDINA
COAL

ELK RUN COAL CO.
ELK RUN COAL CO.
April 21, 2007
April 22, 2007

Analysis Report No. 61-5411

Mercury Standard Result 0.05 ppm

Respectiully submitted,

SGS NORTH A?A NC

Charleston Laboratory

SGS Morth America inc | Minerals Services Division

F-465

5793 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV 25304 ¢(304) 925-6631 £{304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

B Member af the SGS Group
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE
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April 4, 2007

SMURFIT SIONE CONTAINER
MILL DIVISION

P.O. BOX 2000 Sample identification by
FERNANDINA FL 32035. ELK RUN COAL CO .

ATIN: CORLISS EROWN :

SAMPLE I.D.: TL M925

FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COAL
reported to us
Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO. '
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO.
Date sampled April 1, 2007
Date received April 1, 2007
Analysis Report No. 61-3825
SHORT PROXTIMATE ANALYSIS
As Received Dry Basis
% Moisture 5.09 KXAKXK
% Ash 9.78 10 .30 : .
Btu/lb 13033 13732 MAF 15309
% Sulfur 0.70 0.74 ;
S0 1lb/million Btu @ 100% 1.07 ;
% Chlorine 0.09 0.09

Respectfully submitied.
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC

Charleston Laboratory

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division
5793 MacCarkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV 25304  1{304) 925-8631 £(304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

[ . Member of the SG6S Group

v

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE ’




April 4, 2007

SMURFII STONE CONIAINER _
MILL DIVISION
P.0. BOX 2000 Sample identification by H
FERNANDINA FL 32035 ELK RUN COAL CO. ' .
ATIN: CORLISS BROWN
SAMPLE I.D.: TL M925
' ; FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COAL
reported to us

Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO.
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO.
Date sampled April 1, 2007

Date received BApril 1, 2007

Analysis Report No. 61-3825

Mercury Standard Result 0.04 ppm

Respectfully submitted
SGS NCRTH AMERICA INC

Charleston Laboratory

SGS Narth America Ing | Minerals Serviges Division
5793 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV 25304 1{304) 925-6631 1(304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/mingrals

! Member of the SGS Group
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE

Fo465



March 26, 2007 ’ ]

SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER

MILL DIVISION 1
P.O. BOX 2000 . Sample identification by
FERNANDINA FL 32035 ELK RUN COAL CO.

ATTN: CORLISS BROWN
SAMPLE I.D.: TL M924

FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COAL 75 RAILCARS
reported to us
Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO.
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO. : i
Date sampled March 21, 2007
Date received March 21, 2007
Analysis Report No. 61-3018
SHORT PROXIMATE ANALYSIS ’ ,
As Received Dry Basis
% Moisture 4,61 XAAXX
% Ash 9.84 10 .32
Btu/1lb 13163 13799 MAF 15387
% Sulfur 0.66 0.69 :
S0 lb/million Btu @ 100% 1.00 . :
% Chlorine 0.15 0.16 :

Respectfully submitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC

Charleston Laboratory

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division )
5793 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charlesion, WV 25304 t(304) 925-6631 (304} 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

’ ’ Member of the SGS Group

F-465
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE



F-465

March 26, 2007

SMURFIT STONE
MILL DIVISION
P.0C. BOX 2000
FERNANDINA FL
ATTN: CORLISS

Kind of sample
reported to us
Sample taken at
Sample taken by

Date sampled

Date received

CONIAINER

Sample identification by
32035 ELK.RUN COAL CO.
BROWN

SAMPLE I.D.: TL M924

FERNANDINA \
COAL 75 RAILCARS
ELK RUN COAL CO.
ELK RUN CCAL CO.
March 21, 2007
March 21, 2007
Analysis Report No. 61-3018
l

Mercury Standard Result 0.03 ppm

Respectfully submitted
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC

A font—

Charleston Laboratory

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division -
5793 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charlestan, WV 25304 (304) 925-6631  £{304] 325-8877  wwwr.us sgs.com/minerals

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ON REVERSE

Mémber of the SGS Group




March 1, 2007

SMURFIT STONE

CONTAINER
. MILL DIVISION
P.O. BOX 2000 : Sample identification by
FERNANDINA FL 32035 ) ELK RUN COAL CO.
ATTN: CORLISS BROWN. ' .
) : SAMPLE I.D.: TL M923
FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COAL 75 RAILCARS
reported to us R i
Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO.
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO.
Date sampled February 24, 2007
Date received Februaxy 25, 2007
Analysis Report No. 61-1207
SHORT PROXIMATE ANALYSIS
As Received Dxy Basis
% Moisture 4.07 XRXXK
% Ash 9.74 10.15
Btu/lb 13127 13684 MAF . 15230
% Sulfur 0.65 0.68
SO, 1b/million Btu @ 100% 0.99
% Chlorine 0.09 0.09

Respectfully supmitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC -

A

) Charleston Laboratory
SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division

£0. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323 ¢{304)} 925-6631 (304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF SERVICE (1N REVERSE

Member of the SGS Group




F 485

March 1, 2007

SMURFIT STONE
MILL DIVISION
'P.O. BOX 2000
FERNANDINA FL
ATTN: CORLISS

Rind of sample
reported to us

Sample taken at

" Sample taken by

Date sampled

Date received

CONTAINER
Sample identification by
32035 ELK RUN COAL CO.
BROWN _
SAMPLE I.D.: TL M923
: . ‘FERNANDINA
COAL : ) 75 RAILCARS

ELK RUN COAL CO.
ELK RUN COAL CO.
February 24, 2007

February 25, 2007

Analysis Report No. .61-1207

Mercury Standard Result 0.06 ppm

Respectiully submitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICA ING.

Charleston Lbratory

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division
-P0. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323 1(304} 925-6631 £(304) §25-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

I Member of the $6S Group
GFNFRA! CONDITINNS OF SFRVICE NN RAVER]E




February 20, 2007

SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER
MILL DIVISION } , _
P.O. BOX 2000 Sample identification by ;
FERNANDINA FL 32035 ‘ ELK RUN COAL CO.

ATTN: CORLISS BROWN

SAMPLE I.D.: TL M922 :
" FERNANDINA 1

Kind of sample COAL é
reported to us _ i
Sample taken at ELK RUN COAL CO.
Sample taken by ELK RUN COAL CO.
Date sampled Februaxy 15, 2007
Date received February 15, 2007
Analysis Report No. 61-180329
SHORT FROXIMATE ANALYSIS
As Received ny Basis
% Moisture 4.76 boloead
% Ash 3.73 10.22 .
Btu/1b 13091 13745 MAF 15310
% Sulfur 0.67 0.70
505 1lb/millicn Btu @ 100% 1.02 ‘ :
% Chlorine 0.10 0.10 :

Respectfully submitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC.

A

Charleston Laboratory ’ —

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division .
PO. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323 t(304) 825-6631  £(304}925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals :__

! " Member of the $GS Graup

GENFRA! CONNMTONS NF SFRVICE NN RFVFRSE



February 20, 2007

SMURFIT STONE
MILL DIVISION
F.O. BOX 2000
FERNANDINA FL
ATTN: CORLISS

Kind of sample
.reported to us '’
Sample taken at
Sample taken by

Date sampled

Date received

CONTAINER

32035
BROWN

COAL

ELK RUN COAL CG.
ELK RUN COAL CO.
February 15, 2007

February 15, 2007

Analysis Report Xo.

Sample identification by
ELK RUN COAL CO.

SAMPLE I.D.: IL M922
FERNANDINA

61-180329

Mercury Standard Result 0.05 ppm

Respectfully submitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICA INC

Rond—

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Diviston *

P0. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323

Charleston Laboratory

1{304) 925-6631  £([304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

i

Member of the SGS Group

GFNFRAL CONDITIONS OF SFRVICF NN RFVFRSE




February 2, 2007

SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER
MILIL DIVISION
P.0O. BOX 2000 Sample identification by
FERNANDINA FL 32035 GORALS
ATIN: CORLISS BROWN
SAMPLE I.D.: TL M940
FERNANDINA
Kind of sample COCAL
repaorted to us
Sample taken at GOALS
Sample taken by GOALS
Date sampled January 27, 2007
Date received January 30, 2007
Analysis Report No. €1-179202
SHORT PROXIMATE ANALYSIS
As Received Dry Basis
% Moisture 6.17 KXXKX
% Ash 9.84 10.49
Btu/lb 12848 13693 MAF 15298
% Sulfur 0.73 0.78
SO0; 1b/million Btu @ 100% 1.14
% Chlorine 0.09 .10

Respectfully submitted,
SGS NORTH AMERICAINC .,

Charlesten Laboratory

SGS North America Inc | Minerals Services Division
PO. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323 1({304) 925-6631 1{304) 9258877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

l Member of the SGS Group

AEMERAN MORINMANS AR QESVACE Nl QEORE

i
i



February 2, 2007

SMURZFILT STONE CONIAINER

MILL DIVISICN .
P.C. BOX 2000 Sample identification by

FERNANDINA FI, 32035 GOALS

ATIN: CORLISS BROWN
SAMPLE I.D.: TL MS40

FERNANDINA

Kind of sample COAL
reported to us -

Sample taken at GOALS
Sample taken by GOALS
. Date sampled January 27, 2007

Date received January 30, 2007

Analysis Report No. 61-179202

Mercury Standard Result 0.092 ppm

Respectfully submitted,
SGS NQRTH AMERICA INC

Charleston Laborato

SGS North America Inc Mjnera]s.Services Division
P0. Box 808, Charleston, WV 25323 1(304) 925-6631 {(304) 925-8877 www.us.sgs.com/minerals

f Member of the SGS Group

F-485
GFNFRAI CONNITIONS OF SFRVICE MR RFVFRSF



Table 2

No. 7 Power Boiler, Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC
Response to FDEP Request for Additional Information dated April 11, 2007

Historical Use of Coal over 0.75% Sulfur Content

S02
% Sulfur As| Ib/million

Train # Ship Date Received |BTU @ 100%
M921 1/8/2003 0.77 1.2
M925 2/24/2003 0.76 1.2
M928 3/20/2003 0.77 1.19
M922 7/3/2003 0.76 1.19
M932 10/22/2003 0.76 1.18
M934 11/20/2003 0.76 1.19
M936 12/10/2003 0.78 1.19
Ma37 12/14/2003 0.76 1.15
M938 12/26/2003 0.77 1.19
Shipments >0.75 in 2003 9
Total Shipments in 2003 31
M921 2/2/2004 0.76 1.19
M923 9/11/2004 0.77 1.19
M928 11/6/2004| 0.76 1.2
M929 11/18/2004 0.78 1.2
M930 11/30/2004 0.77 1.16
M931 12/6/2004 0.76 1.19
Ma32 12/9/2004 0.78 1.19
Shipments >0.75 in 2004 7
Total Shipments in 2004 32
M923 4/18/2005 0.76 1.14
M928 6/12/2005 0.78 1.19
M937 9/27/2005 0.76 1.2
M938 10/1/2005 0.79 1.2
M940 10/23/2005 0.78 1.19
Shipments >0.75 in 2005 5
Total Shipments in 2005 32
M929 1/18/2006 0.77 1.19
M928 10/2/2006 0.76 1.18
M936 12/20/2006 0.76 1.15
M937 12/29/2006 0.76 1.2
Shipments >0.75 in 2006 4
Total Shipments in 2006 29
Shipments >0.75 in 2007 YTD 0
Total Shipments in 2007 yTD 10
Total Shipments > 0.75 25
Total Shipments 134

Smurfit Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Fernandina Beach Mill

Page 1 of 1

51212007



Smurfit-Stone E & I Dept.

Working LOOP NO. 55FT022
Instructions LOOP TAG Name: #7 POWER BOILER OXYGEN
And Data Sheet ANALYZER
Revised: November | DATE:
4, 2005 E/I1 TECH
Page: 1of 1 Name:

YOKOGAWA 02 ANALYZER MODEL z021C

1. Notify the operator that this instrument will be out of service for test/calibration. Ensure that the loop

is in manual control.
2. Place the meas/maint switch to maintenance.
3. Check zero calibration gas bottle to make sure it has gas in it.
4. If ok, press std gas recall key (indicator light comes on)
(a) Press span (air) key, read setpoint (20.9)
(b) Press zero key, read zero set point. (this setting is printed on side of gas bottle and sﬁould read the
same) if readings are correct proceed to step 6.
5. If zero gas bottle is empty, replace with new sample bottle, then.
(A) Press std gas entry key, which turns on indicator light.
(B) Press span (air) key which will increase one digit on the display.
(C) Press zero key, will read preset value, to change to new value press zero key to increase data on
display to correct value. (*) display exceeds 2.50 it will automatically return to 0.5.
(D) Press std gas entry key to turn off the indicator light.
Press the cal operation key and insure that the cal light is on.
Pass instrument air to the probe and wait until the indication stabilizes. (set air flow to 600ml/min.)

Record indication on data sheet.

A S

Pass the zero gas to the probe and wait until the indication stabilizes at proper value as indicated on
side of bottle. Set flow to 600ml/m. Record indication on data sheet.

10. Return the meas/maint switch to measure.

11. Close valve on the zero gas bottle. Notify the operator to return to service. _
12. If at anytime during this procedure an error message appears, or indications are not within tolerance,
refer to manufacture manual, repair and repeat this procedure.

ZERO GAS STANDARD % VERIFY ZERO GAS STANDARD ON SAMPLE BOTTLE.() OK

AS FOUND AS LEFT CHECK FOXBORO ON ANNUAL

SHUT DOWN FOR ACCURARCY

INPUT AS FOUND AS LEFT
20.9% INSTRUMENT AIR MA 4 %02
__ %ZERO SAMPLE AIR MA & %02
MA 12 %02
MA16 %02
MA20 %02

COMPLETE THIS SHEET AND MAKE A COPY AND PLACE IN FILES



Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, April 12, 2007 8:59 AM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Attachments: Modification LTR - SSCEI - Bill Crews - Permit Project #0890003-019-AC .pdf

[

€8
Ao

Modification LTR -
SSCEI - Bil...

----- Original Message-----

From: Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov [mailto:Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 6:06 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Re: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Hi Mary,
We got your email

Thanks,

Katy

Katy R. Forney

Air Permits Section
EPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth St., SW
Atlanta, GA 30024

Phone: 404-562-9130
Fax: 404-562-9019

"Harvey, Mary"
<Mary.Harvey(@dep

.state.fl.us> , To

' <bcrews@smurfit.com>, Kathleen
04/11/2007 02:31 Forney/R4/USEPA/USQREPA, "Kirts,
PM Christopher”

<Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.u
s>, <DBuff@Golder.com>
cc

"Koerner, Jeff"
<Jeff.Koerner@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Adams, Patty"
<Patty.Adams@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Gibson, Victoria"
<Victoria.Gibson@dep.state.fl.us>
, "Mitchell, Bruce"
<Bruce.Mitchell@dep.state.fl.us>

) Subject
Permit Modification Ltr. -
Smurfit-Stone Container
Enterprises, Inc.



Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 4:52 PM

To: Adams, Patty ‘

Subject: FW: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

From: Crews, Bill [mailto:BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM]

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 3:07 PM

To: undisclosed-recipients

Subject: Read: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Your message

To: BCREWS@SMURFIT.COM
Subject:

was read on 4/11/2007 3:07 PM.



Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 2:57 PM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

From: Buff, Dave [mailto:DBuff@GOL DER.com]

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 2:53 PM

To: undisclosed-recipients

Subject: Read: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Your message

To: DBuff@GOLDER.com
Subject:

was read on 4/11/2007 2:53 PM.
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Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 2:31 PM

‘To: ‘berews@smurfit.com'; 'FORNEY . KATHLEEN@EPA.GOV'; Kirts, Christopher; 'DBuff@Golder.com'
Cc: Koerner, Jeff; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria; Mitchell, Bruce

Subject: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Attachments: Modification LTR - SSCEI - Bill Crews - Permit Project #0890003-019-AC.pdf

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by selecting "Reply” on the menu
bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send”. We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open and review the document(s) as soon
as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded for free at the following
internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other correspondence in lieu of hard copies
through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the applicant and the engineering community. Please
advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

7/19/2007
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| Adams, Patty

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, April 16, 2007 2:14 PM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

From: Kirts, Christopher

Sent: Monday, April 16, 2007 2:11 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: RE: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Received, thank you

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2007 2:31 PM

To: 'berews@smurfit.com'; 'FORNEY.KATHLEEN@EPA.GOV'; Kirts, Christopher; 'DBuff@Golder.com’
Cc: Koerner, Jeff; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria; Mitchell, Bruce

Subject: Permit Modification Ltr. - Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please éend a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by selecting "Reply” on the
menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send”. We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will
preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s). :

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open and review the document(s) as
soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded for free at the
following internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other correspondence in lieu of hard
copies through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the applicant and the engineering
community. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

7/19/2007



Charlie Crist

Florida Department of e Cris!
Environmental Protection Jff Kottkamp

. Lt. Governor
Bob Martinez Center

2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

April 11, 2007

Electronically Sent — Received Receipt Requested

Mr. Bill Crews

Environmental Manager

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill

North 8™ Street

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

RE: Request to Modify the No. 7 Power Boiler’s Permitted Conditions
Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC
Existing Permit No. PSD-FL-062

Dear Mr. Crews:

On March 16, 2007, the Department received a request to modify the No. 7 Power Boiler’s permitted
conditions. The application is incomplete. We have determined that the following additional information
is needed in order to continue processing this application package. Please provide all assumptions,
calculations, and reference materials, that are used or reflected in any of your responses to the following
issues:

1. For the last five shipments of coal received by the mill, provide the analyses of the coal’s sulfur content,
by weight, and the calculations demonstrating that the sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions will not exceed the
limit of 1.2 [bs/MMBtu.

2. Have you ever purchased and fired coal in the No. 7 Power Boiler with a sulfur content, by weight,
greater than 0.75 percent? If so, please provide documentation and the analyses and dates received.

3. Please detail the procedure used to calibrate the continuous oxygen monitoring system. How often is
the oxygen monitor calibrated? Please provide all data and performance curves relating five gas oxygen
content to carbon monoxide (CO) and nitrogen oxides (NO,) emissions. Please provide the current
performance curves or calculations used to demonstrate compliance with the CO and NO, standards.

4. Since the oxygen monitor is used to demonstrate compliance with the standards for NO, and CO, when
was the last date that the oxygen set points were verified or reestablished? How was this done? Provide all
of the dates that the oxygen set points were verified or reestablished, and provide the data and the results of
these evaluations.

5. When was the oxygen monitor installed and calibrated? Have any hardware and/or software upgrades
been made on the existing oxygen monitoring system since its installation? If so, please describe the
upgrades and provide dates that the upgrades were made. Since installation, has the manufacturer of the
oxygen monitor been contacted by you to see if any upgrades should be made? If so, please provide the
correspondence and documentation.

6. Please provide all of the dates that a relative accuracy test audit (RATA) has been performed on the
oxygen monitor since installation, as well as the results of those tests.

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state.fl.us



Mr. Bill Crews

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Fernandina Beach Mill .

Request to Modify the No. 7 Power Boiler’s Permitted Conditions
Permit Project No. 0890003-019-AC

Existing Permit No. PSD-FL-062

- Page 2 of 2

7. In the coal sampling and analysis plan, references are made to an equation to calculate the maximum
allowable sulfur (S) content based on the SO, limit of 1.2 Ib/MMBTU and the heating value of the coal.
That equation is:

%S (maximum allowed) = (6.32 x 10”%) x (BTU/Ib)
How did you arrive at this equation? Please provide a detailed derivation.

8. Please provide a summary of all stack tests conducted for CO, NO, and SO, emissions, including the
corresponding flue gas oxygen content and unit load.

9. Discussions with EPA indicate that it was EPA’s intent to establish a maximum sulfur content limit for
coal as Best Available Control Technology (BACT). Please comment.

The Department will resume processing your application after receipt of the requested information. Rule
62-4.050(3), F.A.C., requires that all applications for a Department permit must be certified by a
professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. This requirement also applies to responses to
Department requests for additional information of an engineering nature. For any material changes to the
application, please include a new certification statement by the authorized representative or responsible
official. You are reminded that Rule 62-4.055(1), F.A.C., requires applicants to respond to requests for
information within 90 days or provide a written request for an additional period of time to submit the
information. If you have any questions regarding this matter, please call Bruce Mitchell at (850)413-9198.

Jeffery F. Koerner, P.E.
Permitting North Administrator
Bureau of Air Regulation

JFK/bm

cc: Bill Crews, Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (bcrews(@smurfit.com)
Kathleen Forney, USEPA Region 4 (Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov)
Chiris Kirts, DEP — NED (Christopher Kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
David A. Buff, P.E., Golder Associates, Inc. (dbuffi@golder.com)
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AIR PERMIT APPLICATION
TO CLARIFY
NO. 7 POWER BOILER
COAL FUEL SULFUR CONTENT

Prepared For:
Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
_ North 8" Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

Prepared By:
Golder Associates, Inc.
6241 NW 23" Street, Suite 500
Gainesville, Florida 32653-1500

March 2007
053-7568
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APPLICATION FOR AIR PERMIT—LONG FORM



APPLICATION INFORMATION

Purpose of Application

This épplication for air permit is submitted to obtain: (Check one)

Air Construction Permit

X Air construction permit. :

| [] Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL).
| [] Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL),
and separate air construction permit to authorize construction or modification of one or
more emissions units covered by the PAL.

| Air Opération Permit
Initial Title V air operation permit.
Title V air operation permit revision.

Title V air operation permit renewal.

Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional
engineer (PE) certification is required.

Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional
engineer (PE) certification is not required.

O OO0 00

Alr Construction Permit and Revnsed/Renewal Title V Air Operatlon Permit
(Concurrent Processing)
[] Air construction permit and Title V perm1t revision, mcorporatmg the proposed project.

[ 1 Air construction permit and Title V permit renewal, mcorporatmg the proposed project.

Note: By checking one of the above two boxes, you, the applicant, are

requesting concurrent processing pursuant to Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C. In

such case, you must also check the following box:

[ I hereby request that the department waive the processing time
requirements of the air construction permit to accommodate the
processing time frames of the Title V air operation permit.

Application Comment

This application is to clarify that the maximum sulfur content for the coal burned in No. 7 Power
Boiler is not restricted to 0.75 percent, but instead is restricted by the formula:

%S (max allowed) =(6.32 x 10) x (Btu per Ib coal)

and by the maximum 502 emission limit of 1.2 Ib/MMBtu.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form 0537568/4.3/SSCE_DB_FernBeach-PB7.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 _ 2 : 3/6/2007



APPLICATION INFORMATION

Scope of Application

Emissions ‘ Air Air

Unit ID . Description of Emissions Unit Permit Permit
Number Type Proc. Fee
015 No. 7 Power Boiler ACM 1

Application Proéessing Fee

Check one: [] Attached - Amount: $

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
Effective: 02/02/06 _ 3

] Not Applicable

0537568/4.3/SSCE_DB_FemBeach-PB7.doc ‘

3/6/2007



APPLICATION INFORMATION

Owner/Authorized Representative Statement

Complete if applying for an air construction permit or an initial FESOP.

1. Owner/Authorized Representative Name :

George Q. Langstaff, Vice-President, Regional Mill Operations

2. Owner/Authorized Representative Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm: Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.

Street Address: North 8" Street .
City: Fernandina Beach State: FL Zip Code: 32034

3. Owner/Authorized Representative Telephone Numbers...

Telephone: (904)261-5551 ext. Fax: (904)277-5888

Owner/Authorized Representative Email Address:

5. Owner/Authorized Representative Statement:

1, the undersigned, am the owner or authorized representative of the facility addressed in
this air permit application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after
reasonable inquiry, that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and
complete and that, to the best of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this
application are based upon reasonable techniques for calculating emissions. The air
pollutant emissions units and air pollution control equipment described in this application
will be operated and maintained so as to comply with all applicable standards for control
of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of the State of Florida and rules of the
Department of Environmental Protection and revisions thereof and all other requirements
identified in this application to which the facility is subject. I understand that a permit, if
granted by the department, cannot be transferred without authorization from the '
department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or legal transfer of the

facility or any permitted emissions unit.
5//3/02

WAy /4
Signaw / H/V - Date

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form 0537568/4.3/SSCE_DB_FemBeach-PB7.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 4 3/6/2007



APPLICATION INFORMAT‘ION

Application Responsible Official Certification

- Complete if applying for an initial/revised/renewal Title V permit or concurrent processmg

of an air construction permit and a revised/renewal Title V permit. If there are multiple

‘responsible officials, the “application responsible official” need not be the “primary

responsible official.”

1. Appliéation Responsible Official Name:

2. Application Responsible Official Quallﬁcatlon (Check one or more of the followmg
options, as applicable):

[0 For a corporation, the president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in
charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or
decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such
person if the representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more
manufacturing, production, or operating facﬂmes applying for or subject to a permit under
Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.

[] For a partnership or sole proprietorship, a general partner or the proprietor, respectively.

(] For a municipality, county, state, federal, or other public agency, either a principal executive
officer or ranking elected official. :

[[] The designated representative at an Acid Rain source.

3. Application Responsible Official Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm:
Street Address:
City: State: Zip Code:

4. Application Responsible Official Telephone Numbers... _
Telephone: ( ) - ext. Fax: « )y -

5. Application Responsible Official Email Address:

Application Responsible Official Certification:

1, the undersigned, am a responsible official of the Title V source addressed in this air
permit application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after
reasonable inquiry, that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and
complete and that, to the best of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported.in this
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
Department of Environmental Protection and revisions thereof and all other applicable
requirements identified in this application to which the Title V source is subject. 1
understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred without
authorization from the department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or
legal transfer of the facility or any permitted emissions unit. Finally, I certify that the
Jacility and each emissions unit are in compliance with all applicable requirements to
which they are subject, except as identified in compliance plan(s) submitted with this

application.

Signature B Date
DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) ~ Form | 0537568/4.3/SSCE_DB_FernBeach-PB7.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 , 5 3/6/2007
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APPLICATION INFORMATION

Professional Engineer Certification

1. Professional Engineer Name: David A. Buff
Registration Number: 19011

2. Professional Engineer Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm: Golder Associates Inc.**
Street Address: 6241 NW 23rd Street, Suite 500

City: Gainesville State: FL Zip Code: 32653
3. Professional Engineer Telephone Numbers...
Telephone: (352) 336-5600 ext.545  Fax: (352) 336-6603

4. Professional Engineer Email Address: dbuff@golder.com !

5. Professional Engineer Statement:
I, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted herein*®, that:

(1) To the best of my knowledge, there is reasonable assurance that the air pollutant emissions
unit(s) and the air pollution control equipment described in this application for air permit, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with all applicable standards for control of air
pollutant emissions found in the Florida Statutes and rules of the Department of Environmental
Protection; and '

(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this application
are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable techniques available for
calculating emissions or, for emission estimates of hazardous air pollutants not regulated for an
emissions unit addressed in this application, based solely upon the materials, information and
calculations submitted with this application.

(3) If the purpose of this application is to obtain a Title V air operation permit (check here [, if
s0), 1 further certify that each emissions unit described in this application for air permit, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with the applicable requirements identified in this
application to which the unit is subject, except those emissions units for which a compliance plan
and schedule is submitted with this application.

(4) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an air construction permit (check here [X, if so) or
concurrently process and obtain an air construction permit and a Title V air operation permit
revision or renewal for one or more proposed new or modified emissions units (check here [, if
50), 1 further certify that the engineering features of each such emissions unit described in this
application have been designed or examined by me or individuals under my direct supervision and
Sfound to be in conformity with sound engineering principles applicable to the control of emissions
of the air pollutants characterized in this application.

(5) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an initial air operation permit or operation permit
revision or renewal for one or more newly constructed or modified emissions units (check here [],
if so), I further certify that, with the exception of any changes detailed as part of this application,
each’such’emzss:ons unit has been constructed or modified in substantial accordance with the
znforma‘tzon gnfen in the corresponding application for air construction permit and with all

{4 @ QFOVISIOH‘:S“C,OILJIU‘I’ 2d in such permit.
5 Y o % '
S8 & @bog 50/% | 3[1/07
sgsg '5?3 @E? % Date
?'-,%(521) = efuf’ﬁs, g
iy o.,? Q Rt u‘ %t g ‘
;‘@/* Attagh,any, extceptior {'f?certlfcatlon statement.
7, ﬁ"‘“BoJard of Profee sional Engineers Certificate of Authorization #00001670
'\)
“Maaaouw“
DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form 0537568/4.3/SSCE_DB_FernBeach-PB7.doc

Effective: 02/02/06 6 ' 3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

III. EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Title V Air Operation Permit Application - For Title V air operation permitting only,
emissions units are classified as regulated, unregulated, or insignificant. If this is an application
for Title V air operation permit, a separate Emissions Unit Information. Section (including
subsections A through I as required) must be completed for each regulated and unregulated
emissions unit addressed in this application for air permit. Some of the subsections comprising
the Emissions Unit Information Section of the form are optional for unregulated emissions units.
Each such subsection 1s appropriately marked. Insignificant emissions units are required to be
listed at Section I, Subsection C. '

Air Construction Permit or FESOP Application - For air construction permitting or federally
enforceable state air operation permitting, emissions units aré classified as either subject to air
permitting or exempt from air permitting. The concept of an “unregulated emissions unit” does
not apply. If this is an application for air construction permit or FESOP, a separate Emissions
Unit Information Section (including subsections A through I as required) must be completed for
each emissions unit subject to air permitting addressed in this application for air permit.
Emissions units exempt from air permitting are required to be listed at Section I, Subsection C.

Air Construction Permit and Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit Application -
Where this application is used to apply for both an air construction permit and a revised/renewal
Title V air operation permit, each emissions unit is classified as either subject to air permitting or
exempt from air permitting for air construction permitting purposes and. as regulated,
unregulated, or insignificant for Title V air operation permitting purposes. The air construction
permitting classification must be used to complete the Emissions Unit Information Section
of this application for air permit. A separate Emissions Unit Information Section (including
subsections A through I as required) must be completed for each emissions unit subject to air
permitting addressed in this application for air permit. Emissions units exempt from air
construction permitting and insignificant emissions units are required to be listed at Section II,
Subsection C.

If submitting the application form in hard copy, the number of this Emissions Unit Information
Section and the total number of Emissions Unit Information Sections submitted as part of this

-application must be indicated in the space provided at the top of each page.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form " 0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EUI.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 13 - ’ : ,3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

A. GENERAL EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Title V Air Operation Permit Emissions Unit Classification

1.

Regulated or Unregulated Emissions Unit? (Check one, if applying for an initial, revised or
renewal Title V air operation permit. Skip this item if applying for an a1r construction
permit or FESOP only.)

[XI The emissions unit addressed in this Emissions Unit Information Section is a regulated
emissions unit.

[] The emissions unit addressed in this Emissions Unit Information Section is an
unregulated emissions unit.

Emissions Unit Description and Status

1.

Type of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section: (Check one)

] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a singlé emissions unit, a single
process or production unit, or activity, which produces one or more air pollutants and
which has at least one definable emission point (stack or vent).

[] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a group of
process or production units and activities which has at least one definable emission point
(stack or vent) but may also produce fugitive emissions.

(] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, one or

more process or production units and activities which produce fugitive emissions only.

2. Description of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Sectlon No. 7 Power Boiler with Coal and
Ash Handlmg System -

Emissions Unit Identification Number: 015

3.

4. Emissions | 5. Commence 6. Initial 7. Emissions Unit | 8. Acid Rain Unit?
Unit Status Construction Startup- Major Group ] Yes
Code: Date: Date: SIC Code: X No

A 26

9. Package Unit:
- Manufacturer: Model Number:

10. Generator Nameplate Rating: MW

11. Emissions Unit Comment: Consists of the No. 7 Power Boiler, Coal Handling System, and
Ash Handling System. No. 7 Power Boiler is primarily fired with coal.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form ' | 0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 14 ’ ~ - 3/6/2007




EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION .

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 1 of 5

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

External Combustion Boilers, Industrial, Bituminous Coal, Pulverized Coal: Dry Bottom

{Tangential)

2. Source Classification Code (SCC): -1 3. SCC Unuts:

1-02-002-12

Tons Burned

4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5.
40.84

Maximum Annual Rate:
357,758

6. Estimated Annual Act1v1ty

Factor:

7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8.

Maximum % Ash:
7

9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
25

10. Segment Comment:

Maximum % S limited by the formula: %S = (6.32 x 10'5) x (Bt

based on 12,500 Btu/lb and 1,02

1 MMBtu/hr.

u/tb coal). Maximum rates

‘Segment Description and Rate: Segment 2 of 5

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):
External Combustion Boilers, Industrial, Residual Oil: Grade

6 Qil

2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units:

1-02-004-01

Thousand Gallons Burned

4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5.
6.807

Maximum Annual Rate:
5,963

6. Estimated Annual Activity
Factor:

7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8.
25 :

Maximum % Ash:‘

9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
150 '

10. Segment Comment:

No. 6 fuel oil may contain on-spec used oil and shall only be used as supplemental fuel,
standby when coal is not available, startups, and shutdowns. Basis: 1,021 MMBtu/hr

limited to 10 percent annual capacity factor.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form

Effective: 02/02/06

18

0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1 .doc
. 3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [1]

No.

7 Power Boiler

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION
Segment Description and Rate: Segment 3 of § '

1.

Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

External Combustion Boilers, Industrial, Wood/Bark Waste

Source Classification Code (SCC)
1-02-009-02

3. SCC Units:
Tons Burned

6. Estimated Annual Activity

4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 5. Maximum Annual Rate: -

10 Factor: .
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
10. Segment Comment:

Segment represents input of carbonaceous fuel (sludge and bark ash). Based on Permit No.

0890003-009-AV.

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 4 of 5

I.

Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Bulk Materials Storage Bins: Coal

Source Classification Cede (SCC):

3-05-102-03

3. SCC Units:

Tons Processed

Maximum Hourly Rate:

5. Maximum Annual Rate:
400 357,758

6. Estimated Annual Activity

Factor:

Maximum % Sulfur:

| 8. Maximum % Ash:

9. Million Btu per SCC Unit.

10.

Segment Comment:

Maximum hourly rate represents system design unloading capacity. Annual rate represents

throughput to No. 7 Power Boiler.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
Effective: 02/02/06

18

0537568/4 3/SSCE-DB-EU1.doc
©3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION

‘Segment Description and Rate: Segment 5 of 5

I.

Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):
External Combustion Boilers, Industrial, Distillate Oil; Grades 1 and 2 oil

2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units:
1-02-005-01 Thousand Gallons Burned
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
T 7.293 . _ 6,389 Factor:
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
0.5 : ' 140
10. Segment Comment:

Maximum hourly rate based on 1,021 MMBtu/hr. Maximum annual rate based on limit of

10-percent annual capacity factor.

No. 2 fuel oil used only as supplemental fuel, standby when coal is not available or for

startups and shutdowns.

Segment Description and Rate: Segment

of
1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):
2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units:

4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
. Factor:
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9.- Million Btu per SCC Unit:

10. Segment, Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
Effective: 02/02/06

18

0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU 1 .doc
3/6/2007



Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

List of Pollutants Emitted by Emissions Unit

'EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

E. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANTS

1. Pollutant Emitted | 2. Primary Control 3. Secondary Control | 4. Pollutant
' Device Code Device Code Regulatory Code
PM 010 - EL
PM;, 010 NS
S0, EL
NOy EL
co EL
VvVOC NS
HAPS NS
Hydrochloric Acid EL
(H106)
Hydrogen 'NS
Fluoride (H107)
Mercury (H114) 010 EL
DEP-Form No. 62-210.900( 1.) ~Form 0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1.doc
19 3/6/2007

Effective: 02/02/06



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION - POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION

Section [1] Page [1] of [3]

No. 7 Power Boiler _ Particulate Matter - PM

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
POTENTIAL/ESTIMATED FUGITIVE EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Potential/Estimated Fugitive Emissions

Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction
permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal
Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E if
applying for an air operation permit.

1. Pollutant Emitted: _ 2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control:
SO, : :
3. Potential Emissions: 4 : 4. Synthetically Limited?
1,225.2 Ib/hour 5,366.38 tons/year XK Yes [INo
5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as applicable):
' to . tons/year
6. Emission Factor: 1.2 Ib/MMBtu .| 7. Emissions -
_ . . Method Code:
Reference: 40 CFR 60.43(a)(2) | 0
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
tons/year From: To:

9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if reqﬁired): 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
tons/year [] 5years [] 10 years

’

10. Calculation.of Emissions:
1.2 Ib/MMBtu x 1,021 MMBtu/hr=1,225.2 Ib/hr
1,225.2 Ib/hr x 8,760 hr/yr x 1.ton/2,000 Ib = 5,366.38 TPY

11. Potential Fugitive and Actual Emissions Comment:
See also attached approved Coal Sampling and Testing Procedures.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form 0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 . ‘ 20 ' 3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION

Section [1] Page [1] of [3]

No. 7 Power Boiler _ : Particulate Matter - PM

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
' ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS -

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical
emissions limitation.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 1 of 2

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: - 2. Future Effective Dafe of Allowable
RULE Emissions:

3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
1.2 Ib/MMBtu o 1,225.2 Ib/hour  5,366.38 tons/ycar

5. Method of Compliance:

Coal fuel sampling and analysis.

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): :
40 CFR 60.43(a)(2). Applies to solid fuel burnlng See attached sampling and anaIySIS plan,
approved by EPA and FDEP.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 2 of 2

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
RULE , Emissions:

3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
0.8 Ib/MMBtu . - 816.8 Ib/hour  3,577.58 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:
Fuel Analysis.

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):
40 CFR 60.43(a)(1). Applies to liquid fuel burning.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions of
1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
Emissions:
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
Ib/hour tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form | 0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1.doc
Effective: 02/02/06 21 : 3/6/2007



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1]
No. 7 Power Boiler

H. CONTINUOUS MONITOR INFORMATION

Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to continuous monitoring.

Continuous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor 1-0f 2

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):
VE
3. CMS Requirement: ' X Rule . [ Other
4. Monitor Information... ‘
Manufacturer: Land Combustion
‘Model Number: 4500 MKIIt Serial Number: 11230452
5. Installation Date: , 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
01 November 2005 02 November 2005
7.

Continuous Monitor Comment: 40 CFR 60.45(a)

Continuous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor 20f2

1.

Parameter Code:
02

2. Pollutant(s):

CMS Requirement: | ] Rule - [ Other

Monitor Information...
Manufacturer: Yokogawa

Model Number: 2021

Serial Number: 630509

Installation Date:
1997

6. Performance Specification Test Date:

Continuous Monitor Comment:

Required per Permit No. 0890003-001-AV, EPA/DER agreement, and CFR 52.21(j). Monitor is

located in the economizer section of the boiler.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
- Effective: 02/02/06 ‘ 23

0537568/4.3/SSCE-DB-EU1 .doc
3/6/2007
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ATTACHMENT A

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc. (SSCE) recently received final Title V operating permit No.
0890003-009-AV, issued January 3, 2007, for the Fernandina Beach Mill. The final permit contains a
specific condition for the No. 7 Power Boiler that restricts the sulfur content of the coal burned in the
boiler to no more than 0.75 percent. The permit also contains a specific condition which requires
continuous oxygen (O,) monitoring of the flue gas from No. 7 Power Boiler. SSCE is seeking
changes/clarifications to both of these conditions,-as further described below.

Coal Sulfur Content Limitation

The permit condition_'reads as follows:

“F.26. Sulfur Dioxide. Sulfur dioxide emissions shall be monitored by fuel sampling and
analysis as specified in the “Container Corporation of America Coal Sampling and
Testing Procedures for Compliance Monitoring of SO, for #7 Power Boiler” in lieu of
the installation and operation of a continuous monitoring system.' Coal fuel is limited
to a maximum sulfur content determined by the following formula: ‘ '

%S (max allowed) = (6.32 x 10°) x (BTU per Ib coal)

" The mill shall use the ASTM Methods stated in RAI response dated December 4, 2003 or other
methods approved by the Department.

2 At no time shall the sulfur content exceed 0.75 percent (EPA established BACT dated April 13,
1981).”

The reference cites a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) best available control technology
(BACT) determmatlon dated April 13, 1981.

SSCE is requesting that this condition be revised to remove the requirement that the sulfur content of the
coal not exceed 0.75 percent at any time. SSCE requess that the coal sulfur content only be limited by
the equation provided in the specific condition listed above. This equation is based on limiting the
equivalent sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions from combusting the coal to 1.2 [b/MMBtu heat input. The
maximum allowable %S varies with the heating value of the coal. For example, for coal with a heating

~value of 12,500 Btw/lb, the maximum allowable sulfur content according to the equation is 0.75 percent.

However, coal with a heating value of 13,500 Btw/lb would be allowed a maximum sulfur content of

'

SSCE has been operating under this equation since the Florida DEP air construction permit and EPA PSD
permit were issued in 1981. This is because the specific conditions in these two permits did not contain
any specific restriction on the coal sulfur content. Only the above equation and a maximum sulfur limit.
of 1.2 Ib/MMBtu were contained in the specific conditions. '

Provided in Table 1 is a chronological history of the origin of condition F:26 in the current Title V permit
which contains the coal sulfur lumtauon for the No 7 Power Boiler. A d1scuss1on of the history follows

below

5/1/80 PSD permit application to EPA

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A Golder Associates
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*10/1/80

AC permit application to FDEP
This application states the following in regard to the proposed BACT for SO,: -

“Assuming a heating value of 12,500 Btu/lb (HHV), the sulfur content in the coal,
1s limited to 0.75% in order to meet the NSPS limit of 1.2 Ib SO,/MMBtu
generated.” (pg. 4-11 of PSD application)

This clearly proposes a limit of 1.2 1b/MMBtu, and 0.75% sulfur coal with an “assumed
heating value of 12,500 Btu/lb” is given as an example only. Table 4-4 of the application
listed various coals that would comply with the proposed BACT, including one coal
described as having a sulfur content of 0.8%. '

Preliminary determination issued by EPA (PSD-FL-062)

2/81
2/24/81 Facility comments on coal sulfur issue regarding proposed permit no. AC45-35532
This comment letter on the draft PSD permit submitted by Container Corporation of America
(CCA) requested that the sulfur content of the coal not be specifically limited, and that the
heating value of the fuel be taken into account. CCA proposed a formula which included
sulfur content and heating value. ' '
3/12/81 Construction permit issued (AC 45-35532)
In the FDEP Final Determination, FDEP responded to CCA’s comment, and stated that the
Department will allow credit for sulfur compounds retained in the fly ash and for the heating
value of the coal in determining the maximum allowable sulfur in the coal. The final permit
contains an SO2 emission limit of 1.2 Ib/MMBtu and the following equation:
%S (max allowed) = (6.32 x 10°) x (BTU per Ib coal)
4/13/81 EPA Final Determination and Final PSD Peimit (PSD-FL-062)
The Final Determination document states:
“With this condition, EPA concurs that the proposed use of less than (.75 percent
- sulfur Eastern or Midwestern bituminous coal to achieve the NSPS emission
limit does constitute BACT.” :
The Final Determination refers to Table 3, which provides the allowable emission limits. The
SO; limit in the table is 1.2 Ib/MMBtu. Thus, EPA was clearly stating that the NSPS limit
was BACT, not 0.75 percent sulfur coal.
Specific Condition 4 of the permit states that emissions from No. 7 Power Boiler shall not
exceed those shown in Table 7. The SO, limit in the table is 1.2 Ib/MMBtu. There is no
reference to coal sulfur content.
0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A ' Golder Associates
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The Final Determunation document included a “Response to Public Comment” section, which
addresses a letter from CCA. Comment 2 and EPA’s response are as follows:

“Comment 2: An understanding that “low sulfur coals” are those which by
reason of combined sulfur and heat content, result in emissions not exceeding
1.2 Ib/MMBtu and hence the maximum percent sulfur will vary up or down
depending upon the heat content of the coal (page 4).”

“Response 2: The commenter is correct in his statement. The coal to be used is
0.75% sulfur and contains 1.2 pounds of SO, per million Btu heat input on a
basis of a rolling average on a 30-day basis.”

Although this statement references the 0.75% coal sulfur content CCA provided in its
example, this statement that the commenter is correct, in conjunction with the actual emission
limit of 1.2 I1b/MMBtu, make it clear that EPA did not intend to specifically regulate coal
sulfur content.

10/5/84 Coal monitoring plan submitted
Included the equation fromi the FDEP construction permit relating coal sulfur content to
heating value.
11/21/89  Coal m;)nitoring plan approved by EPA
EPA approved the 10/5/84 plan by CCA which incorporated the sulfur content equation.
12/11/89  Coal monitoring plah vapproved by DEP
DEP approved the 10/5/84 plan by CCA, based on EPA’s approval of/ 11/21/89. |
6/15/98 Original Title V permit issued (0890003-001-AV)
Did not include sulfur limit; Condition F.5 stated the SO, err1i§si0n limit-as 1.2 Ib/MMBtu
heat input. Condition F.9 further states that “Coal fuel is limited to a maximum sulfur
content determined by the following formula:
%S (max allowed) = (6.32 x 10°) x (BTU per b coal)”
12/16/02  Title V permit renewal application submitted by facilit&
3/5/03 RAI #1 issued by FDEP —requested information regarding SO, BACT
6/5/03 F acility response to RAI #1 —see respénse to qqestion #9
8/16/05 First‘Title V renewal permit intent to issue — iﬁcluded 0.75% sulfur limit
11/30/05S  Smurfit comments on draft Title V — questioned validity éf coal sulfur limit
2/27/06 FDEP respohse to fécility comments - response #60 indicated that EPA had been cbntacted
for clarification

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A Golder Associates
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 3/21/06  Email from R. Felton-Smith to B. Crews

9/21/06 Intent to issue Title V permit renewal (0890003-009-AV) — included 0.75% sulfur limit
10/27/06  Smurfit comments on draft Title V
11/9/06 Proposed determination to issue Title V permit — included 0.75% sulfur limit '

The proposed permit incorrectly states in the footnote to Condition F.26 that “At no -
time shall the sulfur content exceed 0.75 percent”, and refers to EPA established
BACT dated April 13, 1981. However, as discussed above, the April 13, 1981 Final
PSD permit does not contain any such limitation.

The only limit on SO, from coal burning in the PSD permit is 1.2 [b/MMBtu. If EPA had intended
that No. 7 Power Boiler be subject to a limit of 0.75% sulfur in the coal, it would have and easily could .
have included such a limit in the PSD permit. There is no such limit; instead the 0.75% appears in EPA's
narrative discussion of its BACT determination. ‘

In the BACT discussion from the April 13, 1981 Final Delermination, EPA states:

"The applicant's BACT review concluded that low sulfur bituminous coal would achieve
the NSPS standard with the lowest economic impact and least technological uncertainty.
EPA reviewed this analysis and questioned the availability of low sulfur coal over the
lifetime of the proposed project. The applicant proposed to include in the equipment
design allowances to enable addition of FGD at any future date if and when a poor
availability of low sulfur coal interfered with meeting the allowable emission standard of
1.2 Ibs SO,/MMBtu. With this condition, EPA concurs that the proposed use of less than
.75 percent sulfur Eastern and Mid Western bituminous coal to achieve the NSPS
emission limit does constitute BACT."

Since the permit does not include a condition that the coal sulfur content not exceed 0.75%, there is no
basis for contending that this is a limit. Also, the approved coal fuel sampling plan contains the equation
relating fuel sulfur and heating value. :

SSCE (formerly CCA) has always understood that they were proposing and that EPA had accepted that
CCA could burn any percentage sulfur as long as the SO, emissions did not exceed 1.2 lb/MMBtu. The
specific language in the application supports that CCA was not proposing to limit the coal to a not-to-
exceed 0.75 percent. :

However, regardless of any other language, including EPA's narrative discussion quoted above, the only
limit in the permit is the 1.2 Ibs SO,/MMBtu. Moreover, the intent that this be the only limit is reinforced
by footnote “a” to Table 7 in the PSD permit, which gives the formula for calculating the SO, emission
‘limit when both coal and wood are burned. If EPA had intended to impose a ceiling on the sulfur content
as calculated by the formula, it would have added language like that recently proposed by the FDEP.

In conclusion, the only binding conditions and emission limits are those expressly set forth as such in the
permit and that an EPA discussion of the means to achieve an emission limit -- unless expressly
incorporated as a permit condition -- is not part of the permit and certainly does not justify, 25 years after
the initial permit was issued, inserting a limit not previously expressed in any other permit for the boiler.

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A Golder Associates



March 2007 . -5- 053-7568

. N

Flue Gas O, Monitoring

The Title V Permit condition from the PSD permit reads as follows:

F.27. Oxygen. Oxygen shall be continuously monitored. The continuous Oxygen
monitoring system shall comply with the applicable requlrements of 40 CFR Part 60,
Appendix B, Performance Specification 3.

[Construction  Permit No. AC45-35532; EPA Modification to PSD-FL-062
dated 4/13/81]

This condition stems from Table 3 of the PSD permit dated 4/13/81. Under the allowable emission limits

for NO,, the “Basis” of the limit is stated as “BACT”, with a footnote. The footnote states “BACT
control is to be established in accordance with Attachment IT”. Attachment Il of the PSD permit is
entitled “Use of Flue Gas Oxygen Meter as BACT for Combustlon Controls” (see attached copy) This
document, in turn, states in part the following:

“The permittee shall install a continuous oxygen monitor in the flue of the permitted
combustion device which meets the requirements of 40 CFR, Appendlx B, Performance
Specification 3.”

The pérformance specifications of Appendix B are typically for extraction type continuous emission
monitoring systems (CEMS) located in the stack. In fact, Performance Specification 3 (PS3) references
to PS 2 for the proper stack location of an O, monitor. PS2, Section 8.0, states the following:

“Install the CEMS at an accessible location where the pollutant concentration or emission
rate measurements are directly representative or can be corrected. so as- to be
representative of the total emissions from the affected facility or at the measurement
location cross section. Then select representative measurement points or paths for
monitoring in locations that the CEMS will pass the RA test (see Section 8.4). If the
cause or failure to meet the RA test is determined to be the measurement location and a
satisfactory correction technique cannot be established, the Administrator may require the
CEMS to be relocated.”

“8.1.2. CEMS Measurement Location. It is suggested that the measurement location be
(1) at least two equivalent diameters downstream from the nearest control device, the
point of pollutant generation, or other point at which a.change in the pollutant
concentration or emission rate may occur and (2) at least a half equlvalent diameter
upstream from the effluent exhaust or control device.”
One issue is that when referring to “combustion controls,” i.e., monitoring good boiler combustion to
minimize NO, and CO, this is by definition referring to “boiler O,,” not “stack O,.” Stack O, would be

~after the ID fan and include all of the leaks, etc. through the precipitator, and would not be indicative of

boiler combustion conditions. The standard practice for monitoring boiler combustion is to monitor the
excess air in the flue gas after the combustion zone, usually in the economizer section of the boiler, and

~prior to the control device. This is in fact what SSCE does. SSCE uses a probe into the economizer

section, not a stack extraction monitor. It is maintained and calibrated on a set schedule. This is
consistent with SSCE’s other mills that have similar O, monitoring requirements. Note that SSCE
monitors this same boiler O, on all of their power and recovery boilers as an indication of boiler operating

conditions. Additionally, PS3 requires a RATA to compare O, to stack sampling conditions. '

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A Golder Associates
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SSCE’s O, monitor on the No. 7 Power Boiler is not inconsistent with the first part of PS3, i.e., that the
monitor be located at a location that 1s “directly representative” of the total emissions. The O, monitor 1s
located at the most representative location. However, an RA test cannot be conducted at the location due
to the stack sampling criteria.

SSCE therefore requests to remove the PS 3 requirement from this permit in conjunction with the revision
request associated with the coal SO, monitoring issue. Suggested rewording of the condition is provided
below: :

F.27. Oxygen. Boiler oxygen shall be continuously monitored. The continuous Oxygen

_monitoring system shall be calibrated at least annually following the manufacturer’s
recommendations.

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A Golder Associates
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" TABLE 1

Smurfit-Stone Container Enterprises, Inc.
Fernandina Beach Mill
PB7 SO; Issue Timeline

5/1/80 PSD permit application to EPA

10/1/80 AC permit application to FDEP

2/81 | Preliminary determination (PSD-FL-062)

2/24/81 Facility commeﬁts on coal sulfur issue

3/12/81 Construction permit issued (AC 45-35532) — see response to facility E:ommehts; did not
include sulfur limit

4/1 3/81 EPA Final Detérmination.(PSD-FL-O62) — see response to facility comments

10/5/84-  Coal monitoring plan submitted

12/11/89  Coal monitoring plan approved by EPA

6/15/98 . Original Title V pemﬁt issued (0890003-001-AV) — did not included sulfur limit

12/16/02  Title V permit renewal application subm_itted by facility

3/5/03 RAI #1 issued by FDEP — requested information regarding SO2 BACT -

6/5/03 Facility re;ponse té RAT#1 — see response to question #9

8/16/05 First Title V intent to issue — included 0.75% sulfur limit

11/30/05  Smurfit coﬁunents on draft Title V — questioned vélidity of coal sulfur limit

2/27/06 FDEP response to facility comments — response #60 indicated that EPA had been contacted
for clarification '

3/21/06 Email from R. Felton-Smith to B. Crews

9/21/@6 Intent to issue Title V permit renewal (0890003-009—AY) —included 0.75% sulfur limit

10/27/06  Smurfit comments on draft Title V

11/9/06 Proposed determination to issue Title V permit — included 0.75% sulfur limit

0537568/4.4/PB7/Attachment A ' Golder Associates
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APPROVED COAL SAMPLING AND TEST PROCEDURES

NO. 7 POWER BOILER



USE OF FLUE GAS OXYGEN METER AS BACT FOR
COMBUSTION CONTROLS

Within the time limits specified in General Condition 3 of this permit,
the permittee shall determine the emissions of nitrogen oxides and carbon
monoxide from the permitted combustion device in accordance with test
methods and procedures-set out in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, Methods 7
and 10, respectively. These emission determinations shall be made at:

- 1) Maximum design capacity; and
2) Normal oberationa] load.

The permittee shall install a continuous oxygen monitor in the flue of
the permitted combustion device which meets the requirements of 40 CFR
Part 60, Appendix B, Performance Specification 3. Results of emission
determlnations sha]l be correlated to the flue gas oxygen content to define:

1) The point at which Nitrogen Oxides (NO_)
emissions (1b/MMBtu) equals the allowaBle
NO emission rate contained in the permit.

2) The point at which carbon monoxide (CO)
" emissions exceed the allowable CO em1551on
.rate contained in the permit.

The flue gas oxygen content shall be maintained between these points and
alarms shall be set to sound when flue gas oxygen levels ‘exceed either

side of this range. Any operation outside of this range will constitute
noncompliance with this specific condition, shall be recorded in accordance
with General Condition 4 of this permit, and will be reported quarterly
along with excess emissions in accordance with 40 CFR 60.7 (c).

Should any combustion equipment modifications be made such as differenf

type burners, combustion air relocation, fuel conversion, tube removal or
addition, etc., emissions correlations as described above shall be conducted
within 90 days of attaining full operation after such modification. Results
of all emission determinations shall be sent to the permitting authority
within 90 days after completion of the tests.
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Florida Department of Environmental Regulation

Twin Towers Officc Bldg. ® 2600 Blaix Stonc Road @ Tllahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Bob Martinez, Governor Dale Twachtmann, Secretary Joha Sheager, Assistant Seceetagy

Decambar 11, 1989

cc: R. Hagan
D. Little
R. Cobb - Clayton legal

. WMilliams ~ Jax CMD
foriginal to S: Luedtke)

Mr. Roger Hagan
Container Corporation of America

x

Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034
Pear Mr. Hagan:

Enclosed is the Environmental Protection Agency's recommended
approval of your power boiler #7 fuel sampling and analysis.
procedures in lieu of continuous ewmissions monitoring for S0,;.
The EPA'S response is in reply to an inquiry by the Department's.
Air Compliance Section.

The Department hereby -approves your requested sampling and

" analysis procedures that have been in effect since #7 power

boiler became operational. We do not plan to take any further
action, however, you should not in the future, assume that yon
have a waiver from rule requirements until final approval is
granted. The submittal of a request does not constitute approval.

Please contact John Brown at (904) 488- 1344 or me if you have any
questions,

Sincerely,

Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

CHF/ht - , .
cc: Andy Rutyna, NE District
Terry Cole . | F:&:E50Q7E§

DEC L 4 Reep
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3 TUNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGIQN |V

343 COURTLAND STREET. N.E. /c? F

ATLANTA. GEORGIA 303865

NOV 21 1989 L/
4APT-AC NOV 2» E O
Mr. Steve Smallwood, P.E., Director : _ DCH

Division of Air Resourcaes Management

Florida Department of Environmental
Raqulatjon

Twin Towers Office Building ' B

2600 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Dear Mr. Smallwood:

As requested in your letter of September 18, 1989, we have 2é§§é§

' reviewed the fuel sampling and analysis plan to detarm;ne 50,
emissions from boilar No. 7 oparated by Container Corporation
of America in Nassau County, FPlorida. Boiler No. 7 is subject
to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D and is required to monitor SO,
emissions as SpeCLfled by §60.45(a). Since bollex No. 7 does
not have an §0, contrxol device, Container Corporation can
monitor SO, by fuel sampling and analysis as allowed by
§60.45(b).” However, since the fuel sampling and analysis
procedures are resarved, then source owners must propose their
own.

- We recommend that Container Corporation’s proposed fuel -
sampling and analysis procedures be approved. ‘Their proposed
-procedures should provide reprasentative S0, emissions from
boiler No.7 and should prevent the firing o% non-complying
sulfur coal- '

If you have any questions regarding this letterx, please contact
Mc. Paul Relnermanm at 404/347- 2904- '

Sanerely 3,

Roger O. Pfaff, Chief

. Air Compliance Branch . RER:

Air, ggls)txcz.des and Toxics’ : ECE‘)‘V?D
Management Division . o DE¢ 17 %
aes ¥ alyna, WE et . gy,
M R, F it

R Hachn

D Lot le :

R cobb — Clasfhont Lega !

Ewv Fric

R CgFFO

. ‘. - N .
. - . - »
’e . ‘ .
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cc’

Crieaegea 3aacn 7o

-~ October 5, 1984

Mr. Bill Vagel

" Air and Waste Management Division

£pPA
345 Courtland Street
Atlanta, Georgia

Dear Mr. Yogetl:

I Nerih Egnin Sirzat

bac C (.

CR.C. Cobb - flain Cfffc
'P"‘:/‘ Tfaa‘} ~ &l‘o/ %l-""‘l

~Enclosed is a copy of CCA's procedures for compliance monitoring of

S0, by sampling and testing of coal.

The Northeast subdistrict

suggestad we send your office a copy of these procedures for your
office to approve as an alternative method for determining compliance

with the S0; limit.

DER subdistrict and they approve of our SO

methods.

We have reviewed our procedures with the Florida

» sampling and testing
They are awaiting your decision on this matter so an operating

permit can be issued. Your prompt reply will be appreciated.

I[f you have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to be in

contdact with me.

Sincerely,

-CONTAINER CORPORATY

auq& f

Cynthia L. Sawygr

N OF AMERICA

(imt!d/

Eavironmental froup Leader
Enclosure

jrb

C M Fadey 84 m

J,/y,, c. 6“7«//1/ _Tr) /(/ofhf\é’c?f—/- plj/frﬁ’f '



Fagar Mui Division North £:gnin Street

Farnanc:ing ceach, Fionda 32034

Phone: ¢G4 261-3331

CONTAINER CORPORATION OF AMERICA

COAL SAMPLING AND TESTING PROCEOURE‘S

FOR COMPLIANCE MONITORING OF 30,
FOR #7 POWER BOILER



INTRODUCTION



INTRODUCTION TO COAL TESTING

Coal Testing at Container Corporation of America's

Fernandina Beach Mill demonstrates compliance with the 1.2 1bs
S0p /mmBTY on a 30-day rolling average. Container has contracts
with two coal companies that supply approximately 5,000 tons aof
coal per week to the CCA's Fernaniina Beach facility. In CCA's

censtruction permit for this NSP. source, the amount of sulfur
allowed in the ccgal is calculated 4is follows:

ALLOWABLE % SULFUR = 6.32 x 1¢°2 x (BTU per 1b coal)

The coal which is purchased is low surfur coal with high
BTU values. The coal purchasing contract states that the coal
cannot exceed 1.2. 1b SCo/mm8TU. The buyer will reject the coal
if it does not meet the reguiresznts in the contract for S02.
CCA felt as though it woauld be tast to have the coal analyzed
prior to receiving the <snipment at the mill. Therefore, the
coal is analyzed by each coal min2 and it is also analyzed by a
commercial Tlaboratory. [f there is a discrepency in the
analyses, both the mine and the lab run their test again. The

sample 1is also sent ‘to an 1independent 1lab to verify which
analysis is correct.

Since the boiler came on line, CCA has been following this
procedure for S0 compliance monitoring., During the past year

and a half, no sample has gone over .the 1.2 1bs S0p2/mmBTU
liait. This procedures handbook is to identify our coal
sampling and testing procedures w«hich document compliance with

‘the 1.2 Tbs SOp/mmBTY allowable.
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“verification of the mines*

SAMPLING POINT LOCATION

We elected to have the coal sampled and analyzed at each
respective mine site prior to shipments. These analyses are
received at our mill before the coal shipments arrive,

alforalng us the opportunity to reject shipments not meet1ng
C(ntract and/or compliance conditions.

If sampllng were performed at the mill and the analysis .
st owed non-compliance with S it would be very difficult to

d'stinguisn and/or remove the non compliance coal from the’
s-.arage system.

In conjunction with tne analyses conducted at the mine
s tas, i

duplicate coal samples are sent to an independent
lcooratory (Commercial Testing, Charleston, WV) for

results. To date, comparison of
atralyses has been excellent. o



SAMPLING METHODS



din-house laboratory. ‘
- procedures meet ASTM method 2234 for sample size and number of

SAHPLING HETHODS

Not anly is the sampling location important but also the
methoa by which the coal is sampled. The sample collectiaon is
accomplished at the coal mines by different sampling methods.
The Golaen 0Oaks Mine uses a J. A. Redding automatic coal
sampling system (schematic attached). This is a two stage
continuous sampler. Coal shipments to CCA from Golden Qaks
consist of approximately 20 to 25 railcars per lot. This
sampler has a primary cutter which randomly cuts the full
stream of the coal being loaded. During the entire loading
about 7,500 ibs. go to the secondary system where it is crushed
toa 8 mesh and split into a 50 1b. sample. This sample is
then put through a riffler which splits the sample down t> the
5

Ib. increment that is sent to Commercial Testing for
duplicate analysis.

Tne Peabody Mines (Stickney and Robin Hood, WV) use &
semi-mecnanical system. The 1toading operator stops the '
conveyor delt and takes a straignt cut of approximately 59
across the belt. This is done four times per railcar.
size is approxiimately 16 to 20 railcars. There are
approximately 64 to 80 incremental samplies per lot., The sample
is then crushed to 8 mesh and further divided by a riffler.

The sample is split until a 5 to 10 1b. sample is obtained.
This sample is also sent to Commercial Testing and to Peabody's
Both of these coal mines -sampling

1bs.
Tne lot

increments.



PURCHASE CONTRACT

COAL SPECIFICATIONS



Volatile

TABLE 2

PURCHASE CONTRACT
COAL SPECIFICATIOHS

Washed coal .crushed to size of 2" x 0"

BTU/1b 12,500 minimum

Moisture, as received 8% maximum

Ash, as received 11% maximum
30% minimum

Sulfur 1.2 1bs SO,/mmBTU -max imum

t

Coal not meeting specifications for SO, will be rejected.
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TEST METHODS

ASTM METHOD

Sample Sample !

Collection | Preparation | Sulfur Moisture | GCV
Method 19 _ 02234 02013 03177 03773 D3176*

: o Leco
Golden Oaks - | D2224 02013 Sulfur 03302 D3286
' Analyzer
Peabody | p2234 02013 | 03177 03.02 D3286
| _ ' : | 03302 '

Commercial Testing.| --- -1 D2013 03177 0373 . 03286
*

This is the ASTH method for an Ultimate Analysis which dnes not include GCV
ASTM D 3226 is the method to determine GCVY.

The Peabody mine participates in a round robin program where they receive

an unknown sample once a month for analysis. Peabody also checks their analysis
using standard samples on a more frequent basis.

Commercial Testing and Engineering in Charleston

, W serves as the indepen-
dent laboratory.

A copy of their standard laboratory procedure is enclosed.

Following is a comparison of results based on sulfur analysss by the mines and

Commercial Testing. These are monthly averages and show very little difference

A11- the records on compiiance monitoring of S0, are maintained
by the mill Environmental Group.

between analysts.



CCA NO. 7 POWER BOILER

Emissions 1b SO mm BTU as determined by Sulfur Ana]ysis.of the coal.
Mining Company vs Commercial Testing.

Mining Company

- 1984 Golden QOaks Commercial Testing
January ' 0.96 1.02
February 0.94 . 1.02
March ' 0.97 1.05
April 0.96 1.01
May . 1.02 1.05
June . | 0.99 1.05
1984 - Peabody . Commercial Testing
January ‘ 0.97 1.05
February - 0.96 1.08
March _ 1.10 1.14

Aprit 1.05 1.06
May 1.07 1.07

June 1.05 1.06



COMMERCIAL TESTING & ENGINEER!NG_ CO.

GENERAL OFFICES: 228 NORTH LA SALLE STREET, CHICAGO. LLINOIS 40601 AREA CCOE 312 7128-6434

WEST VIRGINIA DIVISION MANAGER
TOM BRAZEAU

PLEASE ADORESS ALL CORRESPONOENCE T
. P.0. 50X 808, CHARLESTON, WV 253
QFFICE TEL. (304) 925-66

SeNCL 1908

- February 23, 1984

Cindy Sawyer

Container Corp. of America

Mill Div., North 8th Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

Dear Cindy,

Commercial Testlﬂg & Engineering Co. in Charleston receives
1000-2000 grams of 8 Mesh coal samples directly from two
suppliers that is to be shipped to Container Corp. of America.

The coal sample is identified by railcar no's. and airdried in
accordance with ASTM D3302 sec. 3.2.2, 3.2.3 and 3.3 at 10°C
above ambient temperature until the moisture loss is less than
0.17Z per hour. The sample is then riffled to 1000 grams and
pulverized to -60Mesh. This sample is subdivided to between
75 and 100 grams and thoroughly mixed in a sample shaker.

This sample is then sent to the laboratory where the following
test are performed. Residual Moisture ASTM D3173-79
Ash ASTM D3174-82, Volatile Matter ASTM D-3175 sec. 6.1, Gross

Calorific Value ASTM D3286-77 and Sulfur determination ASTM
D3177-1982 sec. 3.3.

C.T.&E. adheres to ASTM procedures and has intermal (daily)

as well as external (weekly) quality control samples run under
identical procedures for quality assurance.

If you have any other questlons please feel free to contact
me at your convenience. .

Very truly yours,

COMMERCIAL TESTING & ENGINEERING CO.

o  fllenyy

Edwin B. Snellings, Manager
Charleston Office

EBS/tk.

QVER dN ARANCU ( smAm o m—omr oo
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CONCLUSTON

CCA.fée]s the sampling method and analysis are sufficient to meét
the fuel ana]ysf; specified by CFR 40 60.45(b)(2). In‘fhe Federal‘
register dated-Oct..21,1983, Standards of Performahce for New Stationary
Sources, proposed revisions stated if -the fuél.is sampled, it must meét
ASTH D-2234. As we stated eajier, these samplers do meet ASTM Method

D-2234 and are also analyzed by ASTM methods. We believe this demonstrates

compliance with CFR 40 60.45(b)(2).
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